ORDINANCE NO. 440.1767 AN ORDINANCE OF THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 440, RELATING TO SALARIES

Ordinance No. 440 Narrative

Oct 3, 2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1. TITLE AND DEFINITIONS	1
Section 2. EMPLOYMENT AND ORGANIZATION	3
Section 3. CLASSIFICATION PLAN	4
Section 4. POSITIONS ALLOWED	7
Section 5. EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES	
Section 6. SALARY PROCEDURES	10
Section 7. VOLUNTARY FURLOUGH	11
Section 8. SALARY PLAN AND ADMINISTRATION	12
Section 9. TRAVEL AND EXPENSE	14
Section 10. TEMPORARY EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS	15
Section 11. VOLUNTEER WORKERS	35
Section 12. ORDINANCE PUBLICATION	37
Section 13. CONFLICTS AND CONSTITUTIONALITY	37
Section 14. EFFECTIVE DATE	2

The Board of Supervisors of the County of Riverside, State of California, ordains as follows:

Section 1. TITLE AND DEFINITIONS

This ordinance shall be known as "The Riverside County Salary Ordinance". For the purpose of this ordinance, words and phrases are defined as follows:

- a) "Appointed officers" shall mean the persons appointed or employed by the Board of Supervisors or otherwise as the principal employee of a department or agency in the County government, or of the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District or the Riverside County Regional Park & Open-Space District, which districts for the purposes of this ordinance and resolutions hereunder shall be deemed the equivalent of departments of the County government, except that references in this ordinance or said resolutions to the County shall mean such districts when the context so requires.
- b) "County officers" shall mean the officers designated as such by or pursuant to the law of the State of California.
- c) "Demotion" shall mean a change of employment without intervening loss of working days from a position allocated to a given salary plan and grade to a position of a different class allocated to a lower plan and grade, whether in the same or a different department.
- d) "Employees" shall mean all persons employed by the County of Riverside or the Riverside County Flood Control and Water Conservation District, or the Riverside County Regional Park & Open-Space District, other than officers.
- e) "Full time employee" shall mean employees whose positions require the number of hours usual or prescribed for normal permanent County employment. All positions shall be full time unless otherwise designated or unless the compensation is fixed upon the basis of part time work.
- f) "Holiday" or "paid holiday" shall mean any day on which County offices are not open for business, in accordance with County ordinance, other than Saturday or Sunday.
- g) "Officers" shall mean all "County officers", and "appointed officers" as herein defined, except where the natural construction of this ordinance otherwise indicates: "officer" is the equivalent of "agency/department head".
- h) "Part time employees" shall mean employees in positions which are designated part time or for which compensation is fixed upon a basis of part time work.
- i) "Pay period" shall mean fourteen (14) calendar days from Thursday (starting at midnight) through and including the second Wednesday thereafter, and refers to the period for computing compensation due for all normal working shifts <u>ending</u> during that period.

- j) "Permanent employee" shall mean a regular or seasonal employee who has completed the initial probationary period in a position, not including any incumbent of an At-Will position.
- k) "Physician", and designations of other positions herein which require a license to practice medicine or surgery, including specialties, shall mean and be equivalent to the designation of County Physician as used in State law.
- "Position" shall mean any office or employment to which a group of duties and responsibilities are assigned or delegated by competent authority, the performance of which requires the full time or part time employment of one (1) person unless permission is granted for job sharing.
- m) "Probationary employee" shall mean a regular or seasonal employee who has not completed:
 - 1. the required initial probationary period in a paid status in a position following initial employment; or
 - 2. the required probationary period in a paid status in a position to which he/she has been promoted, transferred, or demoted following completion of the initial probationary period.
- n) "Promotion" shall mean a change of employment without intervening loss of working days from a position allocated to a given salary plan and grade to a position of a different class allocated to a higher grade whether in the same or different agency/department. The appointment of an employee to a position allocated to a higher salary plan and grade because of professional registration achieved by the incumbent shall not be deemed a promotion but a change in salary allocation.
- "Reclassification" shall mean the reallocation of an incumbent within a filled position to a different class by a change of title and class specification, but does not necessarily involve a change of the salary plan and/or grade.
- p) "Regular employee" shall mean a holder of a regular position.
- q) "Regular position" shall mean a position established by this ordinance on an ongoing basis, as distinct from a seasonal or a temporary position.
- r) "Retire", "retired", and "retirement" shall mean receiving a pension through the California Public Employee Retirement System (CalPERS) pursuant to the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (*California Government Code* (Title 2, Division 5)).
- s) "Seasonal employees" shall mean employees whose employment is not continuous but is regularly recurrent in the same capacity because of particular functions which occur periodically each year; such employment may be permanent, but of an intermittent nature.
- t) "Temporary employee" shall mean an employee who is not a regular or seasonal employee.
- u) "Transfer" shall mean a change of employment without intervening loss of working days from a position allocated to a given salary plan and grade to a position of a different class allocated to the same grade in the same agency/department, or to a position of the same class, or a different class allocated to the same grade, in a different agency/department.

 "Working day" means each day on which an employee performs a normal working shift, and including holidays as specified herein which fall on days of his or her normal working shift.

Section 2. EMPLOYMENT AND ORGANIZATION

- a) The various officers are hereby allowed assistants, deputies, and employees, to be appointed or employed in the manner and to the extent as provided in this ordinance and by law.
- b) The powers and duties of officers shall be such as are provided by or pursuant to the law of the State and ordinances of the County of Riverside. Appointive officers shall also have such additional powers and duties as may lawfully be delegated to them by the Board of Supervisors.
- c) All employees shall have and exercise such powers and perform such duties as may be directed by the respective officers under whose direction they work, subject to the provisions of this ordinance.
- d) The conditions of employment specified in this ordinance shall apply to all officers and employees except as otherwise provided by law or any applicable memorandum of understanding between the County and a recognized employee organization (herein "MOU"). One or more of such conditions may be varied as to Resident Physicians and Surgeons and Pharmacist Resident at the Riverside University Health System – Medical Center (RUHS – MC) by resolution of the Board of Supervisors.
- e) In the absence or incapacity of the Sheriff, the Undersheriff will command the department, followed by the Assistant Sheriff assigned to Patrol and Investigations, followed by the Assistant Sheriff assigned to Court Services/Corrections, followed by the Assistant Sheriff assigned to Administration/Support Services.
- f) After an agency/department head has been continuously absent as the result of illness, injury, or leave of absence for more than twenty (20) working days, the assistant agency/department head, or if there is none, the senior employee next in authority, if he/she possesses any required license, shall automatically assume the designation as acting agency/department head, unless the Board of Supervisors appoints another person as acting agency/department head. This shall be deemed a temporary promotion. If the position of agency/department head becomes vacant, or in any case not covered by the foregoing provision, the Board of Supervisors shall designate the acting agency/department head, which shall be a temporary promotion.

When the absence ceases or the vacancy is filled, the temporarily promoted employee shall return to his/her regular position, and his/her regular salary plan and grade and anniversary date shall be re-determined as if the temporary promotion had not occurred. Any merit increases which would have been due in his/her regular position shall be allowed.

- g) Except as otherwise provided by law every officer shall be a citizen of the United States.
- h) When in the judgment of the Board of Supervisors it becomes necessary or desirable to use the services of an employee within the same agency/department in a capacity other than that for which he/she is regularly employed, the Board of Supervisors may by resolution authorize such additional employment, fix any conditions, and provide

for the rate of pay. Such additional employment shall not be included in computing vacation, sick leave, or similar benefits; or eligibility for a merit increase.

i) <u>Employment of Relatives</u>. No officer shall appoint his or her spouse, or the spouse of any officer superior to himself/herself, in any capacity for compensation and no such spouse shall be eligible for appointment to or continued employment in the same position of any such person who succeeded thereto pursuant to any provision of law. Continued employment shall be deemed to include promotion, demotion, or transfer, if such employee is otherwise qualified.

Except as otherwise provided herein, no person shall be denied the opportunity for employment or continued employment because such person is related to any person presently employed by the County of Riverside. In no instance, shall a County officer or employee be within the chain of command or span of control (i.e. execute supervision over or initiate or participate in decisions (including but not limited to initial employment, retention, evaluation, promotion, or work assignments)) specifically pertaining to another County employee who is related within the first degree of consanguinity whether by blood or marriage or any familial relationship that management determines may lead to conflict. Familial relationship shall include, but is not limited to, spouse, father, mother, brother, sister, son, daughter, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, father-in-law, mother-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-inlaw, grandparent, or the equivalent relationships through a lawfully registered domestic partnership.

Should such relationship occur, the employee(s) may promote, voluntarily demote, or will be transferred to position(s) which the employee is eligible and selected to fill. The promotion, transfer, or voluntary demotion must be accomplished within six (6) months.

j) The Executive Director, Salton Sea Authority and the Executive Secretary for the Salton Sea Authority shall be appointed by the Board of Directors of the Salton Sea Authority and shall serve at the pleasure and will of the Board of Directors. Prior to appointment, the County of Riverside Human Resources Director shall obtain written acknowledgment from the prospective appointee(s) acknowledging his or her understanding of such at-will status. Any person appointed to either of these positions may be terminated from service at any time, by the Board of Directors of the Salton Sea Authority, without notice, cause, or rights of appeal. The Board of Directors of the Salton Sea Authority shall by employment agreement determine the compensation, benefits, and conditions of employment for the Executive Director, Salton Sea Authority.

Section 3. CLASSIFICATION PLAN

a) ADOPTION AND AMENDMENT

- 1. <u>Class Specifications</u>. Unless otherwise ordered by the Board of Supervisors, the Human Resources Director may adopt and from time to time amend a classification plan which shall consist of a separate class specification containing the title, general statement of duties, typical tasks, and minimum qualifications, for each class of position other than County officers. Each new or revised class specification shall be approved by the Human Resources Director.
- 2. <u>Maintenance of the Plan</u>. The classification plan shall be maintained in a current condition by the Human Resources Director and the classification plan shall be made available in a format readily accessible by County agency/departments.

- 3. <u>Classification Studies</u>. The Human Resources Director shall have the responsibility for recommending changes in the classification plan to keep the same currently in a condition to meet the needs of the County and its agency/departments. From time to time the Human Resources Director may, and upon order of the Board of Supervisors shall, initiate classification studies of the various positions and class specifications, their relation to the salary plan, and related matters, and make appropriate recommendations to the Board of Supervisors for amendment of the classification plan, this ordinance and resolutions, orders and regulations made pursuant thereto. The Human Resources Director shall have the primary responsibility for preparation of class specifications.
- Approval of New Classes and Reclassification. The Board of Supervisors 4. shall approve the establishment of any new classes, on the recommendation of the Human Resources Director. The Human Resources Director may inactivate from the Class and Salary Listing, without Board of Supervisors' approval, classes which are no longer allocated to agencies or departments and not in current use. Reclassification to an existing class and exchanges of positions shall not require Board of Supervisors approval however, shall require the approval of the Human Resources Director and the County Executive Officer. As an outcome of a classification study or review, the Human Resources Director, with the concurrence of the affected agency/department head, may reclassify positions which warrant a change to an existing job class, when no additional funding is required. This action shall be sufficient to authorize promotion or demotion through reclassification of the incumbents of the positions, on the request of the agency/department head.

b) CONFORMANCE TO PLAN

- 1. <u>Requirement for Class Specification</u>. No person shall be employed in or appointed to any regular or seasonal position until the class specification for such position exists within the classification plan.
- 2. <u>Minimum Qualifications</u>. No person shall be employed in or appointed to any regular or seasonal position unless said person meets the minimum qualifications set forth in the class specification except as otherwise provided in this section. No person shall be employed in or appointed to any temporary position unless said person meets the minimum qualifications set forth in the class specification, unless the Human Resources Director shall certify that there is no qualified person available for the temporary position.
- 3. <u>Underfilling a Position</u>. An underfill shall mean a classification within the same class series, generally the journey level classification within a promotional growth series. This action may be required when filling a position with an individual who currently qualifies for a lower level in the same class series. When any regular or seasonal position has been funded in a(n) agency/department, the position may be filled in a job class of the same class series as if it were a position in the same or lower paid job class.

At a later date, the position may be filled in the originally funded job class, provided the following conditions are met:

a. The employee must meet the established minimum qualifications and is satisfactorily and substantially performing the duties of the higher class.

- b. The originally funded class is the journey level and the underfill is a lower level in the same class series, in the same representation unit and job classes in the series are not separately allocated.
- c. There is no increase in the number of positions allowed for the classes involved.

c) CLASS AND SALARY LISTING

1. <u>Design of Listing</u>. The Class and Salary Listing, by this reference made a part hereof, contains a list, by titles, of all classes of positions in the classification plan, each preceded by a job code number which is assigned for numerical reference, and followed by the salary plan and grade or other basis of compensation which applies to the class.

The Human Resources Director may include in the publication of the Class and Salary Listing other reference information by class, such as the designated union code or salary.

- 2. <u>Amendments to the Appendices Impacting the Class and Salary Listing</u>. The following Appendices: Appendix I, relating to overtime; Appendix II, At-Will classifications; and Appendix III, classifications eligible for the Executive Vehicle benefit, may be amended by resolution of the Board of Supervisors and shall be effective on the first day of the first full pay period following Board adoption, unless a different date is established by the Board.
- 3. <u>Technical Title Changes and Additions</u>. The Human Resources Director may change the title of a class of positions as listed in the Class and Salary Listing, without changing the job code number or salary, when an occupational title change is warranted because of technical or programmatic developments. These changes shall be effective on the first day of the first full pay period following approval.
- 4. Classification Duplication. The Human Resources Director may administratively duplicate an existing class (including for a separate program or district position) when necessary to preserve benefits that have been lawfully afforded to an employee group. The duplicated classification shall only differ from the existing classification by minimal modification of the following factors: title, class concept, essential duties, and recruiting guidelines. The duplicated classification shall be in accordance with the program area of the requesting department, and assigned a separate job code. Included in the provision of this authority is the ability of the Waste Management Department to fill a position in either a generic class or district class when needed to accommodate an employee whose benefits have been "grandfathered" under an earlier district arrangement. The salary of the duplicated class in the Class and Salary Listing shall be equivalent to the existing class, allowing, however, for a different salary plan and grade appropriate to the representation unit. It is not the intent of this provision to duplicate an existing classification solely based on salary and/or at-will status.

Whenever an administrative change or inactivation of a class is made by the Human Resources Director, or by resolution of the Board of Supervisors, the change shall also operate with respect to the listing of the class in Appendix I, II, or III, in the class specification, in any applicable MOU, and/or in any applicable Resolution of the Board of Supervisors.

Any or all sections of this ordinance, its appendices, and any personnel related supplements may be published by the Human Resources Director to include the technical changes authorized by this subsection, without separate Board of Supervisors' action.

Section 4. POSITIONS ALLOWED

a) AUTHORIZED POSITIONS

- 1. <u>Position Control</u>. No person shall be appointed to a position in any agency/department until the position has been allowed. The number of positions allowed to be filled in each agency/department shall be allocated by job class and employment type (e.g., regular, seasonal, temporary, or Per Diem) in the approved agency/department budget. The Human Resources Director shall maintain the official count of positions, which may be allowed when approved by the Board of Supervisors in the agency/department's final budget, or by resolution of the Board of Supervisors. A resolution concerning the number of allowed positions shall be effective on the date of its adoption unless a different date is set by the resolution.
- 2. <u>Change in Allocated Positions</u>. The Human Resources Director may adjust the number of positions allocated to a(n) agency/department, without Board of Supervisors action, when no additional funding is required. The request would require a detailed statement of the reason and need for a new position(s), a justification of the reason for the specific classifications requested and an affirmative statement signed by the agency/department head that no additional County appropriations would be required to sustain the requested position(s) in the current and following fiscal year. Agency/departments requesting a change in the number of positions during the fiscal year, without a change in funding, may request the change using the format prescribed by the Human Resources Director.

Other changes in the number of positions, those requiring additional funding, may be requested by agency/department heads via Form 11 submitted to the Board of Supervisors. Such requests shall contain the job code, job title, and agency/department number of the requested position.

b) PART TIME AND JOB SHARING

- 1. <u>Part-Time Positions</u>. When any full time regular position has been established or allowed in any agency/department by or pursuant to this ordinance, and in the opinion of the agency/department head only a part time employee is needed to perform the work, the position may be filled by a part time employee. A regular part time employee shall be scheduled to work in each pay period a minimum of one half (1/2) the number of hours prescribed for full time normal permanent County employment.
- 2. <u>Job Sharing</u>. Notwithstanding any provisions of this ordinance to the contrary, the Human Resources Director may authorize that two part time employees job share one regular position, provided that each employee is scheduled to work in each pay period one half (1/2) the number of hours prescribed for full time normal permanent County employment.
- c) COMPANION POSITIONS

- 1. <u>Advance Replacement of Terminating Employee.</u> An agency/department head, with prior approval of the Human Resources Director, may fill a regular position with a replacement up to thirty (30) calendar days in advance of a terminating employee. Under exceptional circumstances, the position to be vacated may be filled with a replacement for up to an additional sixty (60) calendar days with the prior approval of the Human Resources Director. On approval, there shall be automatically established in the agency/department, an additional position of the same class which shall be automatically abolished on the effective date of said termination.
- 2. <u>Companion Position During Unpaid Leave.</u> When an employee is authorized a leave of absence without pay for a period in excess of twenty (20) working days, his/her position shall not be filled during such absence. On the agency/department head's request, a temporary companion position of the same class shall be allowed to the agency/department, only for the duration of the approved leave. If a regular employee is placed in such temporary position, he/she shall be entitled to the same benefits as if the position were a regular position. The agency/department head shall promptly inform the Human Resources Director of the adding of the companion position, and of its deletion upon the return to work or separation of the absent employee. The format provided by the Human Resources Director shall be used for this purpose.
- 3. <u>Companion Position During Paid Leave</u>. When an employee is absent on authorized paid leave as above, a companion position may be allowed with the prior approval of the Human Resources Director.

Section 5. EMPLOYMENT PROCEDURES

- The Human Resources administration under this ordinance is designated a local a) merit system except as otherwise provided herein. Appointments and promotions shall be made on the basis of merit and ability. Each officer shall appoint all necessary employees allowed for his or her agency/department by this ordinance only from among persons certified to him/her by the Human Resources Director as eligible for the respective positions. The Human Resources Director shall determine the methods of evaluating the qualifications of applicants. The methods shall be practical in nature and may involve any combination of written test; oral test; performance test rating of education, training and experience; and shall take into consideration a system of veterans' preference as may be adopted by the Board of Supervisors by resolution. The veterans' preference program shall be administered by the Human Resources Director. County Officers and classifications identified in Appendix II of this Ordinance are exempt from the merit system, rather the appropriate County Officer(s) may appoint gualified candidates to these classifications.
- b) Employees may participate in County employment selection processes on County time, so long as it does not interfere with the discharge of their duties or agency/department operations.
- c) Request for referral of applicants and appointments shall be made in writing on forms prescribed and furnished by the Human Resources Director. Appointment forms duly executed shall be filed with the Human Resources Director.
- d) In the event of transfer, promotion, demotion, or reclassification of a regular or seasonal employee an appointment shall be filed as for a new employee but no termination of the preceding employment shall be necessary.

- e) When an employee is separated from County employment written termination of employment signed by the employing officer shall be promptly filed with the Human Resources Director, who shall notify or file copies thereof with other appropriate offices. Forms for this purpose shall be provided by the Human Resources Director and shall be completely filled out, giving the date of termination and the reason therefore. A termination of employment shall automatically terminate a separate appointment as a deputy.
- f) The Human Resources Director shall arrange for a background check and physical examination; cause the oath of office or affirmation to be administered as required by the Constitution of California; and cause other necessary records to be completed, executed, and filed with the appropriate offices.
- g) The Board of Supervisors shall adopt Medical Standards which shall be applied in determining the physical qualifications for employment. Every person initially employed or re-employed in a regular, seasonal, or temporary position within a designated Group I or II Medical Class under such standards, shall undergo a physical examination at the County's expense prior to the commencement of employment. The Human Resources Director may, when indicated, require that candidates within a designated Group III Medical Class undergo medical history, physical evaluation, and/or a physical examination at the County's expense prior to the commencement of the commencement of employment. On the basis of the record and report, the Human Resources Director shall determine whether the applicant is physically qualified for the employment, which determination may be conditional, and the agency/department head shall be notified.
- h) The Human Resources Director shall arrange for the candidate for employment to report to such physician as the Human Resources Director may designate, with a written request for physical examination. The physician shall make the examination and promptly submit to the Human Resources Director a detailed written report thereof, together with his or her determination as to whether or not the employee is physically qualified for the position in accordance with the standards adopted by the Board of Supervisors. To the extent permitted by state and/or federal law the record of such examination may be examined and a copy made by the hiring officer, the County Health Officer, the District Attorney, the County Counsel, the employee or his or her representative authorized in writing, and the authorized representative of any insurance carrier of the County, in any matter in which the County's interest is involved. The record shall be retained by the Human Resources Director, who may require a complete or partial re-examination as may be necessary from time to time or upon a change of work assignment of the employee.
- i) Employees to be employed in security or sensitive positions as designated by the Human Resources Director and all prospective employees shall undergo a background check prior to employment. The Human Resources Director shall make the necessary arrangements for conducting the background check. When the results are received, the Human Resources Director shall inform the hiring officer of the contents thereof.
- j) The requirements of this ordinance for a background check or physical examination or both may be waived by the Human Resources Director for any employee in a regular position, the compensation for which is fixed on an hourly or piecework basis, if the employment is intermittent or occasional in character and not on a full time basis.
- k) Any employee, upon the request of the Human Resources Director or a delegate, shall undergo a further physical examination at any time, upon the same conditions as his or her initial examination. Such subsequent examinations shall not be given

routinely but only for reasons which in the opinion of the Human Resources Director shall justify the expense thereof to the County.

- I) Any County officer may deputize an employee by separate written appointment as deputy filed with the Human Resources Director, and any County officer may likewise appoint as many unpaid deputies as are necessary or convenient for the performance of his or her duties; provided any employee holding a regular position the title of which describes the position as deputy or assistant to a County officer shall be a deputy without a separate appointment as such. The constitutional oaths and appointments as deputies filed with the Human Resources Director shall be deemed filed with the County Clerk, who shall at all times have access thereto. This provision shall not apply as to oaths of office for County officers required by law to be filed with the County Clerk.
- m) Records of employees kept by the Human Resources Director are confidential and shall not be open to public inspection, except as may be required by state or federal law. They may be examined by County officials having an interest therein as a matter of official duty, and information therefrom may be released by the Human Resources Director at his or her discretion in accordance with usual and customary procedures.

Section 6. SALARY PROCEDURES

- a) BASIS OF COMPENSATION
 - 1. <u>Full Compensation</u>. The compensation of each officer and employee as fixed in this ordinance and otherwise by Board of Supervisors' approval, shall be full compensation for the services required of him or her by law or by virtue of his or her office or employment. Except as otherwise specifically provided by law or ordinance, all fees, commissions, and mileage allowed to or received by any officer, his/her deputy, assistant, or employee from a third party by virtue of his/her office or position or the performance of any function thereof, shall be the property of the County and shall be deposited in the County Treasury not later than the fifth (5th) day of the month following its receipt.
 - 2. <u>Non-acceptance of Gratuities</u>. Whether on duty or off duty, no employee or officer shall accept any gift or favorable treatment which could reasonably be perceived as potentially influencing any decision or action of the officer or employee in his or her official capacity, or any decision or action of the County agency/department which he or she represents.
 - 3. <u>Devoting Time to County Business</u>. Every officer and employee holding a full time position shall devote his or her full time to County business and shall not engage in private activities for profit during his or her working hours. This provision shall not apply to hospital based physicians and surgeons, who shall be permitted to attend to private patients at the Riverside University Health System Medical Center in accordance with terms fixed by the Board of Supervisors.
 - 4. <u>Absence Without Pay</u>. Unauthorized absence from duty shall be without pay and accounted for as absence without pay ("AWOP"). An employee who plans to take time off may be allowed approved AWOP when an appropriate leave balance is not available, but when an appropriate leave balance is available, may not be allowed approved AWOP, except in the case of military leave or a furlough program approved by the Board of Supervisors.

5. <u>Pay and Records Adjustments</u>. The Human Resources Director may cause benefits and records of service to be corrected and approve payment of claims in the resolution of grievances and disciplinary matters concerning amounts owed to employees for work performed.

b) ATTENDANCE RECORDS AND REPORTS

Each officer shall keep an accurate and current record of the attendance, absences, and status of employees, including sick leave and vacation accrued and allowed, and related matters. Each officer shall report on forms provided by the Auditor-Controller following the completion of each pay period as to the attendance of each employee in his or her agency/department, listing all absences and such other information as may be required. Such other reports concerning employees shall be made as the Auditor-Controller and Human Resources Director may require. From such reports, the Auditor-Controller and Human Resources Director shall maintain a record for each employee, including vacation and sick leave, accrued and allowed, payroll status, anniversary dates, and similar data. From such reports and records the compensation due each officer and employee shall be determined.

c) PAYMENT

- 1. The County Auditor-Controller shall distribute the salary warrants no later than the second Wednesday following the end of a pay period. Terminated employees shall be paid on the regular payday for the pay period during which they were terminated.¹
- 2. An officer shall not be paid until he/she has submitted the attendance reports required by or pursuant to this ordinance and such other reports or documents as are required by law.
- 3. No officer or employee whose employment is terminated shall be entitled to receive the compensation then due him/her unless and until he/she has paid over or delivered to the appropriate officer of the County all County funds and property in his or her possession or control and any other funds or property held by him/her in his or her official capacity and has properly accounted therefore, or has been lawfully relieved of the obligation to do said acts.

Section 7. VOLUNTARY FURLOUGH

- a) Subject to any applicable Board of Supervisors' Policy, a voluntary furlough may be granted to employees who desire to assist their agency/department in coping with budgetary constraints.
- b) An agency/department head whose current or projected funding level for any budget organization within the agency/department, which in the opinion of the Executive Office, will not sustain the current agency/department staffing level, may advise employees of the entire agency/department that they are eligible for voluntary furloughs. A simple announcement and/or posting or printing of the furlough provisions shall be the limit of such publication by the agency/department, without any promotional campaign or pressure on employees to participate. In agencies/departments which are not identified by the Executive Office as constrained in budget to an extent to warrant voluntary furloughs, the employees of

¹ The County is exempt from Section 201 of the CA Labor Code which requires immediate payment on termination (see § 220).

such agency/department are not eligible to be granted a voluntary furlough.

- c) A voluntary furlough may be granted to regular employees under the conditions specified in this subsection. Hours taken as voluntary furlough shall be counted separately from any leave of absence which may be granted, so a furlough does not reduce the number of hours which an agency/department may grant as a leave of absence, nor does it reduce the number of hours which may be granted as an official leave of absence.
- d) Furlough hours shall not be paid hours, but the fact that there is a reduction from full time in the number of hours of paid status in any pay period in which a furlough is taken shall not constitute a part time status for the purpose of the calculation and entitlement of any benefit. A full time employee on furlough shall continue to receive the full employee benefits over which the County has control. A furlough shall not be taken during temporary military duty, other than weekend drills.
- e) A furlough may be requested by the employee on a form or in a format prescribed by the Human Resources Director. The request shall be submitted to the agency/department head through appropriate channels, and shall require the agency/department head's approval. The agency/department head may deny the furlough request when in their judgment the employee cannot be spared from duty, for operational reasons. Furlough records shall be kept by the agency/department.

Section 8. SALARY STRUCTURE AND ADMINISTATION

a) SALARY PLAN TABLE

- The Human Resources Department shall maintain a Salary Plan Table (Attachment 1) that defines the compensation rates assigned to each salary grade. The Salary Plan Table shall include the following information: an effective date that reflects the date of the start of the first full pay period, following Board of Supervisors approval; the employee group(s) to which the table applies; salary plan code; grade level; salary range width; and the minimum and maximum compensation displayed as hourly, monthly and annual rates.
- 2. The Human Resource Department shall make publicly available the most current Salary Plan Table one pay period after Board of Supervisors approval.
- 3. Subject to Board of Supervisors approval, the Human Resources Director may establish new salary plan tables and/or modify existing salary plan tables to meet the operational needs and collective bargaining obligations of the County.

b) COMPENSATION TABLE

- The Human Resources Department shall maintain a Compensation Table that defines the salary plan and grade assignment for all active County job classes and details other benefits or statuses that are linked to the job class. The Compensation Table shall include the following information: an effective date that reflects the date of the first full pay period following Board of Supervisors approval; job class code and title; salary plan and grade assignment; FLSA exempt status; overtime rate; at-will status; automobile benefit; and preemployment medical grouping.
- 2. The Human Resources Department shall make publicly available the most current Compensation Table. The published Compensation Table shall include, in the same document, the Salary Plan Table(s) that define the value

of each assigned salary grade.

- 3. Subject to Board of Supervisors approval, the Human Resources Director may change the grade assignment of any job class to meet the operational needs and collective bargaining obligations of the County.
- 4. Class grade assignment will be recommended by the Human Resources Department based primarily on market considerations through comparison and analysis of current prevailing wages for comparable work. The Human Resource Department may also conduct an internal job comparison to determine relative value and to maintain internal parity.

c) CLASS AND SALARY LISTING

- 1. Job classes not assigned to a salary structure under subsections a-b above, are assigned a salary plan and grade and all plan/grade assignments will be made publicly available on a Class and Salary Listing, which is distinct from the Salary Plan Table and Compensation Table.
- 2. The base rate of pay for job classes, unless otherwise specified in this ordinance, shall consist of a minimum and maximum hourly, monthly, and annual pay rate or a flat rate. Pay rates may be expressed as biweekly rates in the case of salaried employees.
- 3. The County as an employer shall not pay any of its employees at wage rates less than the rates paid to employees of the opposite sex, regardless of race, gender or ethnicity, for substantially similar work on jobs where the performance of which requires equal skill, effort, and responsibility, and which are performed under similar working conditions, except where the payment is made pursuant to a seniority system, a merit system, a system which measures earnings, by quantity or quality of production, or a differential based on any bona fide factor other than gender, race, and ethnicity.

d) NEW EMPLOYEES

Refer to the applicable Memorandum of Understanding or Resolution of the Board of Supervisors for the rules governing the placement of new employees on the salary grade, including any advanced rate, and/or any "difficulty to recruit" salary adjustments. Refer to Section 10 herein for the rules applicable to temporary employees.

e) CHANGE IN SALARY ALLOCATION

The salary of an incumbent of a position in a class which shall be reallocated to a different salary plan and grade may be adjusted to the same percentage from the minimum pay rate on the new grade as on the previous grade. The anniversary date shall not change. All changes in salary allocation shall coincide with the first working day of a pay period.

f) SPECIAL SALARY ADJUSTMENTS

1. The Human Resources Director may expressly set a different salary and anniversary date for the incumbent of any position, than that called for under

other provisions of this ordinance, MOU, or Board resolution. Unless otherwise specified, such action shall automatically fix a new anniversary date on the first day of a pay period which is one (1) year in a paid status after the resulting change of salary.

- 2. When a higher pay rate has been established to temporarily compensate an employee for additional responsibilities beyond those normally performed in the position, the Human Resources Director may, at the agency/department head's request, adjust such pay rate to compensate for merit increases and cost of living adjustments which the employee would have earned at the normal pay rate, maintaining the differential intended by the original special adjustment. When the additional responsibilities are concluded, the Human Resources Director may return the employee's pay to the normal rate, as though the temporary increase had not occurred.
- 3. The County Executive Officer may order changes to the base rate of pay of employees paid on the EXE Salary Plan to meet budgetary restraints faced by the County. Any adjustments shall be accomplished through an across-the-board percentage adjustment, to each employee's base rate of pay.

e) RE-EMPLOYMENT

- 1. Re-employment after military service shall conform to the requirements of the Military and Veterans Code and the Uniformed Services Employment and Reemployment Rights Act, but in other respects shall be in accordance with this ordinance.
- 2. <u>Re-employment of Retired Persons</u>. An employee who is retired under the California Public Employees Retirement Law and who is receiving retirement benefits shall not be employed or re-employed in any position for compensation without the prior written approval of the Human Resources Director. The Human Resources Director may allow the employment or re-employment following disability retirement, or following service retirement, for up to 120 working days or 960 hours in any fiscal year, without loss of retirement benefits, as specified in the California Public Employees Retirement Law. The law generally permits employment following disability retirement or prevent stoppage of public business, or because the restored employee has skills needed in performing specialized work of limited duration.

Consistent with the requirements of the California Public Employees Retirement Law for discontinuance of retirement benefits, the retiree may be employed or re-employed.

When a retiree under the California Public Employees Retirement Law is employed or re-employed, his/her retirement status must be specified in the documentation of appointment to a permanent or temporary position.

Section 9. TRAVEL AND EXPENSE

Every officer and employee is hereby allowed his or her actual and necessary traveling expense incurred in the discharge of his or her official duties, upon proper claim therefore itemized and presented as required by law. Rates for meals and other usual items may be established by the Board of Supervisors in aid of this provision, and rules and regulations in connection with travel and expense may be adopted by them.

- a) Mileage Reimbursement. Employees who are required to use their personal vehicles for County business shall be reimbursed at the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) standard mileage rate. Adjustments to the County rate, if any, shall be made pursuant to the IRS rate effective at the time mileage is incurred.
 - 1. Subject to different requirement by the Board of Supervisors, claims for reimbursement of expenses shall be accompanied by a receipt or other voucher.
 - 2. Reimbursement for the use of a privately owned vehicle shall be permitted only when a County owned vehicle is not available or upon order of the Board of Supervisors, and subject to rules and regulations established by the Board of Supervisors.
- b) County vehicles shall be used only for the purpose of County business and not for personal business or pleasure of any person whatsoever. No employee shall take a County vehicle outside the County or keep any vehicle at his or her residence without authorization by the agency/department head or his/her designee and subject to the Overnight Retention of County Vehicles Policy (Policy D-10). The Director of Fleet Services shall have the primary authority for the administrative interpretation of the Travel and Transportation Policies (D Policies). Each officer or employee having the custody of a County vehicle shall exercise due caution and prudence in the operation of such vehicle, and shall minimize the risk of damage to such vehicle using available off-street parking whenever reasonably possible, particularly during the night. Such officer or employee shall be liable to the County for damages and other expense resulting from and caused by his or her willful misconduct in the use or operation of such vehicle.
- c) When provided in the statute, ordinance, or resolution establishing a standing board, commission, or committee, or by specific resolution of the Board of Supervisors, the members of such a standing board, commission, or committee shall be reimbursed for their necessary actual expenses in attending the meetings thereof within the County, and for such other necessary actual travel expenses as may be authorized by the Board of Supervisors. Such expenses may include mileage for use of a private vehicle at rates fixed by resolution of the Board of Supervisors. All such travel and expenses shall be subject to the provisions of this ordinance and to rules and regulations applicable to County officers and employees.
- d) Each member of the Board of Supervisors shall receive his or her actual traveling expenses from his or her residence to the place of meeting of the Board at the County seat when attending such meetings and his or her necessary actual expenses in traveling from his or her residence or other point of origin to attend upon and while engaged in County business and returning therefrom, including mileage for use of a private vehicle at rates fixed by resolution of said Board.
- e) The Human Resources Director may authorize the reimbursement of the actual transportation cost of an applicant, for any position, who at the request of the Human Resources Director shall travel to the place of interview in connection with consideration of his or her appointment to such position, unless such applicant withdraws his or her application after such interview or refuses the position after it is offered to him or her. This authorization shall not apply to more than three applicants for any one position at the same time.

Section 10. TEMPORARY EMPLOYMENT PROVISIONS

These Temporary Employment Provisions do not apply to any employees in the County's Temporary Assignment Program ("TAP").

Only subsection (e) of Section 10 applies to unrepresented Per Diem employees.

a) APPLICABILITY²

These Temporary Employment Provisions apply to:

Unrepresented job classes that are temporary or limited-term in nature (e.g. Professional Student Intern, Resident Physician and Surgeon, and Pharmacist Resident); and unrepresented seasonal, temporary, or unrepresented Per Diem employees.

- b) GENERAL PROVISIONS (Not Applicable to unrepresented Per Diem Employees)
 - 1. Except as otherwise provided by this ordinance, a new employee shall be appointed at the minimum pay rate of the appropriate salary plan and grade.
 - 2. Upon prior authorization from the Human Resources Director, the initial salary placement for newly hired employees may be at any rate of the appropriate salary plan and grade for his/her classification.
 - 3. Difficult to Recruit (DTR)
 - A. Classifications or Positions Designated as DTR on or after January 5, 2016. Notwithstanding the provisions of this ordinance, employees shall be compensated at a rate up to twenty percent (20%) of their earnings to a maximum of eighty (80) hours actually worked in a pay period for those positions identified in specific classifications in a specific agency/department designated by the Human Resources Director as "difficult to recruit" (DTR).

Eligibility for the DTR differential shall be determined by the Human Resources Director based on a specific position, classification, geographical location, and/or agency/department basis that a recruitment or retention issue exists and the DTR designation would assist the County in recruiting and retaining employees in the specific position, classification, geographical location, and/or agency/department.

Eligibility for the DTR differential shall not be automatic nor shall such a determination have any bearing on the same or similar classifications (or similarly situated classifications). Upon such determination and approval, any differential granted pursuant to these provisions shall be implemented as follows:

- a. Upon prior authorization of the Human Resources Director, the initial salary placement for newly hired employees may be at any pay rate on the salary plan and grade for his/her classification and shall be compensated a DTR differential.
- b. The DTR differential shall only apply to actual hours worked, up to eighty (80) hours in a pay period.

² Refer to Memoranda of Understanding for personnel rules for employees represented by a Registered Employee Organization, to Board of Supervisor Resolutions for personnel rules for other unrepresented employees, and to the TAP Employee Handbook for personnel rules for TAP employees.

- C. The assignment of the DTR differential shall trigger a review by the Human Resources Department of the position and classification. The review shall consist of review of market benchmarks, turnover rates, exit surveys and other factors that may have created the recruitment/retention issue. In the event the Human Resources Director determines the circumstances that created the recruiting or retention problem(s) for any and/or all position(s) in the specific classification in the specific agency/department no longer exist, he/she shall declare the provisions described above inoperative for such specific position(s)/classification(s). At that time, the DTR differential shall cease. In the event the Human Resources Director determines the recruitment/retention issue is related to a market parity issue. the Human Resources Director may recommend to the Board of Supervisors an adjustment to the salary range of the classification for parity purposes or propose another solution to resolve the recruitment/retention problem deemed acceptable within the provisions of this Ordinance. Should a salary adjustment occur due to a market parity issue, the DTR differential shall no longer apply.
- d. A review of all position(s)/classification(s) designated as DTR shall be conducted annually.
- B. Classifications or Positions Designated DTR prior to January 5, 2016. Notwithstanding the provisions of this resolution there shall be up to an additional approximately eleven percent (11%) which shall be reserved for those classifications designated as "difficult to recruit".

Advancements within the DTR range shall not be automatic. They shall, instead, be granted based upon a determination by the Human Resources Director that a serious recruiting or retention problem exists for a classification(s), or that the increases granted to subordinate "difficult to recruit" classifications has created serious compaction problems, and such designation may be made by geographical area or restricted within a classification to specific positions in specific departments. Upon such determination and approval, any increase granted pursuant to these provisions shall be implemented as follows:

- a. Upon prior authorization of the Human Resources Director, the initial salary placement for newly hired employees may be at any rate on the salary plan and grade for his/her classification up to and including a rate on the salary grades established pursuant to this subsection.
- b. In the event the salary granted to a newly hired employee pursuant to this subsection exceeds that of any permanent, regular full-time or regular part-time employee who has successfully completed one year or more of service at the top of the salary plan and grade for that classification(s), such employee(s) may, upon recommendation of the agency/department head, be placed on the same salary rate as that granted to the new employee.

- C. In the event the Human Resources Director determines the circumstances that created the recruiting or retention problems for any or all classifications in the specific classification in the specific agency/department no longer exist, he/she shall advise the County Executive Officer of his/her findings. If the County Executive Officer concurs, he/she shall declare the provisions described above inoperative for such specific classification(s). At that time, the "difficult to recruit" (DTR) salary plan will return to a standard salary plan, as directed by the Human Resources Director. Any employee compensated at a rate above that to which he/she would otherwise have been entitled upon removal of DTR from the top of the salary grade shall be frozen and shall not be increased until the regular salary for the specific classification exceeds the rate established pursuant to the provisions described above. In the event the Human Resources Director deems it necessary to remove the DTR from the bottom of the assigned salary grade, the salary rate of the affected employees below the new minimum shall be adjusted upwards to the new minimum of the salary range.
- 4. <u>Promotion</u>. On promotion, the salary shall be at a rate on the new salary plan and grade which is five and a half percent (5.5%) higher, than that paid on the salary grade for the former position where the new grade is able to accommodate the increase. The effective date of all promotions shall coincide with the first day of a pay period.
- 5. <u>Transfer</u>. On transfer, the salary shall be the same as that paid previously. The anniversary date shall not change. The effective date of transfers shall coincide with the first day of a pay period.
- 6. <u>Demotion</u>. On demotion, the salary shall be the same percentage on the new grade as on the previous grade, where the new grade is able to accommodate the percentage. The anniversary date shall not change. The effective date of all demotions shall coincide with the first day of a pay period.
- 7. <u>Reclassification</u>. The salary of an incumbent of a position reclassified to a class on the same salary plan and grade shall not change. The anniversary date shall not change.

The salary of an incumbent of a position reclassified to a class on a higher salary plan and grade shall be at the rate which is five and a half percent (5.5%) higher than that paid on the grade of the former position, where the new grade is able to accommodate the increase.

The salary of an incumbent of a position reclassified to a class on a lower salary plan and grade shall be placed at the same rate of pay, or at a pay rate of the new grade which is closest to but not higher than the employee's current rate of pay; where the employee's current rate exceeds the maximum of the new grade, it shall be reduced to the maximum. The anniversary date shall not change.

The effective date of a reclassification shall coincide with the first day of a pay period.

8. <u>Authority to Specify Salary</u>. An agency/department head may specify a higher pay rate within the salary plan and grade for an employee who is

newly hired or re-employed than the pay rate that would be called for under other provisions in this ordinance.

- 9. Working Hours and Overtime
 - a. <u>FLSA Exempt Employees</u>. Any employee whose position is determined to be exempt from the FLSA shall not be entitled to compensation for overtime of any type unless specifically provided herein.
 - b. <u>Definitions</u>: For purposes of determining eligibility for overtime only:
 - (1) A "FLSA work week" shall consist of 168 consecutive hours (i.e. seven (7) days).
 - (2) Overtime is defined as time actually worked by an employee in excess of forty (40) hours in an FLSA workweek. Management reserves the right under the FLSA to designate the FLSA workweek for each employee.
 - c. <u>Authorization for Overtime Work.</u> Performance of overtime work may be authorized by the agency/department head or his or her designated subordinate.
 - d. <u>Reporting and Calculation.</u> Actual hours of overtime work shall be reported on each attendance report. The Auditor-Controller shall maintain the record of overtime credit at one and one-half times such actual hours. Actual hours of compensatory time off shall be reported on each attendance report. If payment is to be made, the number of hours of overtime credit to be paid for shall be specified.
 - e. <u>Compensation for Overtime Work.</u> Employees who are not considered "exempt" under the provisions of the FLSA shall be paid at a rate of one and one-half times their FLSA regular hourly rate of pay for all time actually worked in excess of forty (40) hours during the designated FLSA workweek. Upon termination, accumulated overtime credit shall be paid for.
 - f. <u>Compensatory Time Off.</u> An employee eligible for paid overtime under the provisions of this section may request, subject to management approval, the accumulation of up to one hundred twenty (120) hours of compensatory time off, in lieu of paid overtime. Such overtime is accumulated at the rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) hours of compensatory time off for each hour actually worked in excess of forty (40) hours during the designated FLSA work week.

Accumulated overtime credit may be taken in compensatory time off, at a time or times agreeable to the agency/department head. This method of reducing accumulated overtime credit is encouraged. With approval of the County Executive Officer, banked overtime credit may be paid for.

g. <u>Payoff for Unused Compensatory Time Off Upon Separation from</u> <u>County Service.</u> Upon separation from County service, an employee shall be compensated at his/her hourly rate in effect at that time for each hour, or portion thereof, of accumulated compensatory time off (CTO).

- h. <u>Fringe Benefits not Affected by Overtime.</u> Overtime work shall not be a basis for increasing vacation or sick leave benefits, nor shall it be a basis of advancing completion of required period for probation or merit advance. Where overtime results from necessary irregular work schedules, it may be included in computing the minimum time for merit advance which would otherwise be delayed beyond the normal period.
- 10. <u>Standby.</u> When placed by the agency/department head specifically on standby duty, an employee otherwise off duty shall be paid one (1) hour's pay for eight (8) hours of such duty, to the nearest tenth of an hour.

Standby compensation shall cease when the employee reports to work.

11. <u>Minimum Overtime on Call-Back.</u> A non-exempt employee called back to a worksite to meet an emergency on an overtime basis, whether or not in a standby duty status, shall receive minimum credit for one (1) hours' work.

If an employee should complete the work required, and subsequently be recalled during the minimum credit period, no additional compensation shall be paid for until the minimum credit time has been exhausted. Call-back pay does not include time commuting to and from work.

<u>Remote Call-Back</u>: If an employee may perform call-back work remotely, without the employee having to physically report to a worksite, then the employee will be paid in one-tenth hour increments for all time worked while remotely responding to the call. For example, if the employee remotely completes the performance of work in twenty five (25) minutes, the employee will be paid thirty (30) minutes for the remote call-back.

12. <u>Jury Duty and Court Appearances</u>. A temporary employee shall be entitled to retain jury fees, since the individual shall not be paid for time not actually worked.

Any employee who shall be called as a witness arising out of and in the course of County employment, shall not suffer any loss in their base hourly rate of pay, but any witness fees received shall be paid into the County Treasury, together with any mileage allowed if the employee uses County transportation.

Any employee absent due to private legal matters shall not be entitled to be paid during such absence.

- 13. <u>Sick Leave</u>
 - a. <u>Accrual</u>. Every employee shall accrue sick leave on an hourly basis computed at the rate of .05 hours accrued per hour in a paid status to a maximum of four (4) hours per pay period.
 - b. A seasonal employee shall be allowed to take sick leave only when the employee is in an active payroll status.
 - c. Sick leave shall accrue at all times when the employee is in a paid status.

- d. Accrued sick leave of any person whose employment is permanently terminated shall automatically be canceled.
- e. <u>Proof of Illness</u>. When in the judgment of the agency/department head good reason exists for believing an employee may be abusing sick leave the employee shall be placed on notice in writing. The employee shall also be placed on a medical certification program and be allowed paid sick leave by producing a certificate of a physician, dentist, or other legally authorized person to provide health care services on the same level as a physician; or other proof satisfactory to the agency/department head. Such certificate shall include a written statement signed by a physician, dentist, or other legally authorized person to provide health care services on the same level as a physician, dentist, or other legally authorized person to provide health care services on the same level as a physician, dentist, or other legally authorized person to provide health care services on the same level as a physician, stating the day(s) of the illness/injury and that the illness/injury prevents the employee from being able to work.

Employees on a medical certification program shall have their sick leave usage reviewed at least annually. If the review shows substantial improvement, they shall be removed from the category of having to provide the certificate for each absence.

- f. Every employee shall be able to use accrued vacation, compensatory time, or holiday time when sick leave has been exhausted due to illness or injury unless they are on a medical certification program in accordance with the above.
- g. An employee off work or contemplating to be off work due to illness or injury for an extended period of two (2) weeks or more shall provide a comprehensive health statement as to length of absence from the employee's health care provider stating any duties an employee cannot perform and any restrictions or light duty requirements.
- h. <u>Reporting Requirements</u>. In the absence of a more stringent agency/department policy, an employee reporting off work for such leave usage shall call the employee's supervisor or designee within one (1) hour before or after the employee's scheduled shift starting time.
- i. <u>Reason for Usage</u>. Use of accrued sick leave shall be allowed for the purpose of preventative medical, dental care, and care of the family. For this purpose, family is defined to mean a spouse or Registered Domestic Partner, child, parent (including biological, adoptive, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or registered domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor), brother, or sister of the employee, grandparent, grandchild and the equivalent relationships through a lawfully registered domestic partnership.
- j. <u>Payout for Sick Leave</u>. Upon retirement, disability retirement, or death of an employee, and subject to the provisions of any applicable agreement between the employing agency, unused accumulated sick leave shall be paid for at the rate of ten (10) percent of the current salary value thereof for each such person who has had five full years of service in a paid status, plus two (2) percent for each additional year to a maximum of 50 percent, and, in no event, shall the total payment exceed a sum equal to 960 hours of full pay. Terminal sick

leave pay for employees with five (5) or more years of service in a paid status shall be paid into a Health Savings Account on behalf of the employee.

Sick leave compensation resulting from death shall be made to the persons entitled to it otherwise, in accordance with the Probate Code. Eligibility for a payout under this section is made at the time of separation from County employment and not at a later date.

- 14. <u>Bereavement Leave</u>. Employees who are entitled to accrue sick leave (under this Article) may be allowed up to five (5) days of leave, three (3) of which will be paid, and the additional two (2) days shall be deducted from the employee's sick leave accruals. Eligible employees must be in an active payroll status and be compelled to be absent from duty by reason of the death, or critical illness where death appears imminent, of the employee's father, father-in-law, mother, mother-in-law, brother, sister, spouse, child, grandparent, grandchild, step-relationships of the same categories or equivalent relationships through a lawfully registered domestic partnership. The County has the right to require proper documentation in support of the requested leave.
- 15. <u>Fitness for Duty</u>. An agency/department head, when in his/her judgment good cause exists, may order an employee off work until such time as the employee is able to present the agency/department head a physician's certificate stating the employee is able to return to work without impairing the health of the public, the employee's health, or the health of the other employees in the agency/department.

When the agency/department head orders an employee off work, the employee shall, at County expense, be referred to a County designated physician or other health care provider to obtain the required certificate.

In the event an employee has no accrued sick leave balance, the employee will then be absent from work without pay at the discretion of the agency/department head in accordance with the provisions of this ordinance. Should the physician or health care provider determine that the employee is able to return to work during the shifts from which he/she was ordered off work, the employee shall not be charged with such absence and any leave banks used to cover the absence shall be restored.

16. On the Job Injury or Illness. An employee who suffers an injury or illness which entitles him or her to benefits under the Workers' Compensation Law, and for which he/she actually receives or obtains medical treatment, shall be entitled to full compensation for the first calendar day during which he/she is necessarily absent from duty as the result of such injury or illness, without deduction on account of accrued sick leave or other accrued salary credits. If such absence continues thereafter, he/she shall be paid as salary the difference between the temporary disability payments due him or her under the Workers' Compensation Law and his or her regular compensation, to the extent of the value of his or her accrued sick leave, including, for this purpose, the values, successively, of his/her accrued compensatory time off for overtime and accrued vacation credit. During a period of temporary disability and in the proportion that the employee is paid for the difference between his/her temporary disability payments and his/her regular compensation, he/she shall continue to accrue sick leave and vacation benefits at the regular rate.

The right is reserved to make later adjustments as between salary and disability benefits to conform to the Workers' Compensation Law, or to conform to later development of facts, including the right to recover any overpayments directly or from future earnings.

17. <u>Air Pollution Emergency</u>. An employee unable to work on a regularly scheduled work day due to an air pollution emergency shall be granted a leave of absence without pay for the period of the emergency unless he/she chooses to use his or her accumulated overtime credit, sick leave credit, vacation credit or holiday leave credit for the period of time he/she was off work due to the emergency.

18. Leave of Absence

- a. An agency/department leave of absence or an official leave of absence without pay may be granted for the following reasons:
 - (1) Illness or disability when sick leave has been exhausted;
 - (2) Pregnancy;
 - (3) To take a course of study which will increase the employee's usefulness on return to the County; and/or
 - (4) Personal reasons acceptable to the authority whose approval is required.
- b. <u>Agency/department leave of absence</u>. Agency/department leave of absence up to 480 hours in any one calendar year period may be granted to any employee by the agency/department head. Such leave shall be reported as leave of absence via the agency/department's payroll. The agency/department head may require the leave of absence to be for a specified period of time and appropriate conditions may be imposed, such as providing sufficient medical documentation or other evidence substantiating the leave as required by the agency/department head.
- Official leave of absence. A regular employee may request an official c. leave of absence exceeding 480 hours, but not exceeding one (1) year. Official leave of absence may be granted upon written request by or on behalf of the employee, specifying the period and the reason, upon the written recommendation of the agency/department head and with the written approval of the Human Resources Director. Application must be made on a form supplied by the Human Resources Department in advance of the effective date of the leave, unless circumstances make such advance request impossible. If the Human Resources Director disapproves the request, it shall be so endorsed and returned to the agency/department head, who may present it to the Board of Supervisors. The Board's action shall be final. Any official leave of absence granted shall be for a specified period and appropriate conditions may be imposed such as the employee providing sufficient medical documentation or other evidence documenting the leave as required by the Human Resources Director or a designee.

Such leave may be extended upon further written request containing justification therefore, such request for extension to be processed in the same manner as the original request. In the case of a request for an extension due to illness or disability, updated information of the same kind submitted for the original request will be required. Nothing herein shall prevent the earlier return to duty by the employee, except the agency/department head may require two weeks advance notice of the employee's intention to return.

The Human Resources Director shall be promptly notified of the return of any employee from an official leave of absence. The Board of Supervisors shall have the right to cancel or revoke a leave of absence previously granted.

An employee on leave of absence for illness or disability reasons will be required to present a return to work statement from the attending physician releasing the employee to full duty, prior to being allowed to return to work. Any release to less than full duty will be allowed only as accommodation as required under the Americans with Disabilities Act, the California Fair Employment and Housing Act, a County designed temporary modified duty assignment, and/or the County return to work program.

An employee contemplating family/medical leave for reasons that are foreseeable must provide thirty (30) days advance notice. In cases where the approximate timing of the need for leave is not foreseeable, the employee is required to give notice of the need for family/medical leave as soon as practicable (generally within one or two working days of learning of the need for leave).

- 19. <u>Vacation</u>. Persons employed in the classes of Resident Physician and Surgeon or Pharmacist Resident shall be entitled to one hundred twenty (120) hours (approximately fifteen (15) days) of vacation per year. The vacation may be taken at times agreeable to the agency/department head. Unused vacation shall be carried over to the following fiscal year. Upon separation from County service, a Resident Physician and Surgeon or Pharmacist Resident shall be paid for any unused vacation. All other employees shall not be entitled to paid vacation.
- 20. <u>Paid Holidays</u>. Only seasonal employees, Resident Physicians and Surgeons, Pharmacist Resident, and employees in the Physician Assistant Fellowship classification, in a paid status shall be eligible for paid holidays. Other provisions notwithstanding, if duty is required any time during the 24-hour holiday period, the resident or fellow will be entitled to compensatory time off for all hours worked on the holiday. Duty is defined as any presence at the hospital for professional reasons.³
 - a. A new employee whose first working day is the day after a paid holiday shall not be paid for the holiday.
 - b. An employee who is terminating his or her employment for reasons other than paid County retirement, and whose last day as a paid employee is the day before a holiday, shall not be paid for that holiday.
 - c. An employee who is not in a paid status for either the regularly scheduled working day before the holiday, or the regularly scheduled working day after the holiday shall not be paid for that holiday.

³ This provision for holidays comes from the personal employment contract between Resident Physicians and Surgeons and the Physician Assistant fellows and the hospital.

- d. Seasonal employees who are regularly scheduled to work on a paid holiday shall be paid at their regular rate for the time actually worked. In addition, such employees shall have a choice of:
 - (1) compensatory time off not to exceed eight (8) hours for such holiday or;
 - (2) being paid for the holiday at the regular rate of pay not to exceed eight (8) hours.
- An employee with accumulated holiday credit may, and if requested e. by the agency/department head shall, within seven (7) days, specify the dates of at least three (3) working days during the next two (2) succeeding pay periods that the employee desires to take as holiday compensatory time off. The agency/department head may authorize compensatory holiday time off for all or any portion of the dates specified, but shall authorize at least one (1) of the three (3); provided however, that if in the agency/department head's judgment, such day davs will create a demonstrable hardship to the or agency/department; in that event, the employee, within seven (7) days after notification by the agency/department head, shall specify three (3) other working days, at least one (1) of which shall be granted. Unless otherwise agreed to by the employee, the agency/department head shall not authorize time off less than eight (8) hours. If an employee, after being requested by the agency/department head, refuses or neglects to specify the time he/she desires to take as compensatory holiday time off, as herein provided, the agency/department head may schedule compensatory holiday time off for the employee.
- f. A part time employee shall only receive holiday pay for the holiday or portion thereof which coincides with his or her regularly scheduled working hours.
- g. A full time employee whose regularly scheduled day off falls on a paid holiday shall be entitled to equal compensatory time off for such holiday not to exceed eight (8) hours pay.
- 21. Shift Differential
 - a. <u>Applicability of Shift Differentials</u>. Only FLSA non-exempt employees shall be eligible for shift differentials. Shift differentials do not apply to standby duty, release time, or to leave time, such as vacation, sick leave, or holiday leave. The hourly rate for each shift differential is payable in tenths of an hour. With agency/department approval, day shift employees on an individual basis may waive shift differentials in order to work earlier or later than their schedule would otherwise be, for their own convenience.
 - (1) <u>Evening Shift (swing)</u>. Employees who perform work between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m., shall be paid an evening differential of \$0.60 per hour for the time actually worked between 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m.
 - (2) <u>Night Shift</u>. Employees who perform work between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., shall be paid a night differential

of \$1.20 per hour for the time actually worked between 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

- b. <u>Classes Not Eligible for Shift Differentials.</u> Employees in positions of Resident Physician and Surgeon, Pharmacist Resident, and Physician Assistant Fellowship shall not be paid shift differential(s).
- 22. <u>Bilingual Pay.</u> All full time and part time employees who are assigned work on a regular and continuing basis that requires a second language at least five times per week or once per day to effectively meet the service demands of the County's customers, and who have qualified for bilingual compensation under this sub-section shall receive additional compensation as follows:

<u>Level 1</u>: Basic Oral Communication: \$0.50 per hour Employees at this level perform bilingual translation.

<u>Level 2</u>: Task Completion: \$0.75 per hour Employees at this level perform bilingual translation as well as written translation.

<u>Level 3</u>: Written translation, and medical and legal interpretation: \$1.00 per hour. Employees at this level perform complex verbal and written translation.

Payment of bilingual pay will be pro-rated based on the hours actually worked per pay period.

An employee must perform bilingual translation as a requirement of the job. An employee not receiving bilingual compensation shall not be expected to perform bilingual services.

<u>Testing Administration</u>: The Bilingual Pay Program is administered by Human Resources. Oral and written examinations will be administered by the Human Resources Assessment Center as follows:

Level 1: Basic oral/reading test Level 2: Written Level 3: Complex Level Written

Designation of positions eligible to receive bilingual pay is the responsibility of the supervisor with the approval of Human Resources. An agency/department head whose department has a substantial need for regular and frequent oral or written bilingual skill of one or more positions may make an application to the Human Resources Director on a form supplied to him/her to authorize bilingual compensation for such position. All future recruitments for a position designated as such should include the requirement of bilingual skills.

When the skill is no longer needed or the employee is not required to use it or ceases to possess it, the agency/department head shall terminate the bilingual compensation by written notice to the Human Resources Director. The Human Resources Director may also terminate the bilingual compensation if he/she makes a like determination, and shall notify the department head. In either case, the department head shall notify the employee. The Human Resources Director may designate an employee in the Human Resources Department or other County department to perform bilingual skills for other County departments and districts where there is no one available in the requesting department.

- 23. <u>Health Benefits (applicable only to Resident Physicians and Surgeons,</u> Pharmacist Resident, and employees in the Physician Assistant Fellowship classification).
 - A. The monthly Flexible Benefit contribution for Resident Physicians and Surgeons, Pharmacist Resident, and employees in the Physician Assistant Fellowship classification shall be \$823.00. The Flexible Benefit contribution shall be equivalent to the amount provided to unrepresented employees covered by the Management Resolution. Effective for the plan month April 2021, if monies remain following the deduction of elected benefits, said monies shall be forfeited.
 - B. Medical Premium Subsidies. Effective for the plan month April 2021, the County shall subsidize the two-party and family monthly medical insurance premiums chargeable to employees participating in a County sponsored health care plan as follows:
 - 1. Employees with two-party coverage shall have their monthly premium reduced by twenty-five dollars (\$25.00).
 - 2. Employees with family coverage shall have their monthly premium reduced by one hundred dollars (\$100.00).

The medical premium subsidies shall have no cash value.

The medical premium subsidies shall be equivalent to the amount provided to unrepresented employees covered by the Management Resolution.

- C. In addition, the County shall provide optical insurance, to be paid by the County, for employees in these classifications.
- 24. <u>Additional Compensation for Resident Physicians</u>. Any Resident Physician employed with the County who possesses a valid Physician and Surgeon License, a Drug Enforcement Administration Certificate, and has been authorized to work extra hours as a licensed Physician with the County shall be compensated at the employee's base hourly rate, plus a stipend of eighty (\$80.00) dollars per hour for each hour actually worked.
- 25. <u>Retirement Program</u>. Retirement benefits and related matters for employees are governed by the contracts between the Board of Supervisors and the Board of Administration of the Public Employees Retirement System, by resolutions of the Board of Supervisors, and by State retirement laws.

26. MAINTENANCE

a. Rates for maintenance, including living quarters, meals, or laundry service, furnished by the County to any employee, shall be fixed by a resolution of the Board of Supervisors from time to time. Payment therefore shall be made by a deduction from compensation, or by performance of additional services, as may be determined by the Board of Supervisors.

- b. No charge for meals shall be made where the same are furnished for the convenience of the County, such as for employees at County institutions who are required by the nature of their duties to take their meals in connection with such employment. No person shall receive maintenance at any institution unless on duty at such institution.
- c. Nothing herein shall prohibit the furnishing of meals on a cost basis where necessary or convenient. It shall be the duty of each officer to make certain that the provisions of this section are complied with as to all employees, agency/departments and institutions under his/her control and to keep the Auditor-Controller properly informed as to any payroll deductions required hereunder.
- d. Resident Physicians and Surgeons at RUHS MC shall be furnished without charge medical and hospital care for acute illnesses and injuries contracted or sustained by them during the period of their employment. Whether an illness or injury qualifies under this provision shall be determined by the Assistant County Executive Officer – Health Systems with the advice of the Chief Medical Officer.
- 27. <u>Termination</u>. Except as specifically set out herein, all employees shall serve at the pleasure of the agency/department head and shall not be entitled to any review or hearing procedure upon termination by the agency/department head.

c) SEASONAL EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS

- 1. Initial Probationary Period
 - a. <u>Initial Probationary Status.</u> Each seasonal employee shall be in an initial probationary status from the effective date of his/her initial employment in a seasonal or regular position in a paid status until the required initial probationary period, and any extension, is completed without separation from County employment.

Computation of the initial probationary period in a paid status does not include overtime, standby, on-call or military leave of absence. A seasonal employee who has not completed the initial probationary period, serves at the pleasure of the agency/department head and may be released from employment without cause. He/she is not entitled to the review procedure provided for in this ordinance.

- b. <u>Length of Initial Probation.</u> The length of the initial probationary period for seasonal employees is twelve (12) months of actual work. Months towards completion of initial probation need not be continuous but for a seasonal employee accrued months towards completion of initial probation shall be lost in the event that there is a period of more than one (1) year when the employee is in an unpaid status.
- c. <u>Extension of Initial Probation.</u> The initial probationary period of a seasonal employee may be extended by the employing agency/department head with the approval of the Human Resources Director. Extensions of an initial probationary period are discouraged and must be approved by the Human Resources Director or his or her designee before the end of the existing initial probationary period.

Approval is made on a case-by-case basis and only for rare and extenuating circumstances.

The twelve (12) month initial probationary period may be extended once to fifteen (15) months or twice to eighteen (18) months. If an employee changes classification by promotion, transfer or demotion during initial probation, extensions may also be made in the class to which he/she promoted, transferred or demoted.

- d. <u>Initial Probationary Period Affected by Change in Class</u>. An employee who has not completed the initial probationary period and who promotes, demotes or transfers to another class, will serve a new twelve (12) month probationary period following such promotion, demotion, or transfer. The twelve (12) months required pursuant to the provisions of this section shall be in addition to any initial probationary period hours served by the employee in the position from which he/she voluntarily promoted, demoted, or transferred.
- 2. Discipline, Dismissal, and Review
 - a. The provisions of this subsection do not apply to:
 - (1) At-Will seasonal employees;
 - (2) Seasonal employees who have not completed an initial probationary period with the County of Riverside;
 - (3) Regular seasonal employees serving a promotional probationary period when such disciplinary action does not affect any vested rights.
 - b. The appointing authority may dismiss, demote, suspend, demote and suspend, or impose any other disciplinary action on a probationary employee during the probationary period. Unless such action affects the vested rights of a permanent employee serving a promotional probationary period, no hearing shall be held on any disciplinary action affecting a probationary employee.
 - c. Any of the following acts of an employee who has permanent status shall be good cause for dismissal, demotion, reduction in compensation, suspension, or any other action taken for disciplinary reasons:
 - (1) Dishonesty;
 - (2) Incompetence;
 - (3) Inefficiency or negligence in performance of duties;
 - (4) Neglect of duty;
 - (5) Insubordination or willful violation of an employee regulation prescribed by the Board of Supervisors or the head of the agency/department in which the employee is employed;
 - (6) Absence without leave;

- (7) Conviction of either a felony, or any offense, misdemeanor or felony, involving moral turpitude, or any offense in connection with or affecting the employee's duties other than minor traffic violations. Conviction means a plea of guilty or *nolo contendere* or a determination of guilt in a court of competent jurisdiction;
- (8) Discourteous treatment of the public or other employees;
- (9) Political activity in violation of federal or state law;
- (10) Physical or mental unfitness to perform assigned duties;
- (11) Making a material misrepresentation in connection with obtaining or maintaining employment or position;
- (12) Conduct either during or outside of duty hours which adversely affects the employee's job performance or operation of the agency/department in which he/she is employed;
- (13) Failure to maintain the license, registration, certificate, professional qualifications, education, or eligibility required for the employee's classification when the failure of the employee to maintain such requirements adversely affects the employee's ability to perform his or her job or the performance of the agency/department. The agency/department shall prescribe procedures to ensure that employees affected by the requirements are informed of them;
- (14) Substance abuse in violation of the County of Riverside Alcohol and Drug Abuse Policy;
- (15) Violation of the County's Anti-Violence in the Workplace Policy.
- d. The disciplinary and appeal procedure for seasonal employees shall be the same as in the disciplinary and appeal procedure contained in the most current Resolution of the County of Riverside and Other Agencies Providing Salaries and Related Matters for Exempt Management, Management, Confidential, and Other Unrepresented Employees.
- 3. Merit Increase
 - a. <u>Applicability of Merit Increases</u>. The compensation of each seasonal employee whose pay is below the maximum rate of the grade allowed for the class shall be considered for increase upon his or her anniversary date, except as otherwise provided.
 - b. <u>Anniversary Dates</u>. The first anniversary date as a result of an original appointment shall be the first day of the pay period following the completion of 12 months of actual work in a paid status in the position, not including overtime.

Re-employment at a rate other than that of the minimum rate of a grade shall be considered an original appointment for purpose of fixing the anniversary date.

The first anniversary date as a result of promotion or reclassification, which involved a salary increase, shall be the first day of the pay period following the completion of six months of actual work in a paid status in the position, not including overtime.

The second anniversary date shall be the first day of the pay period following the completion of an additional 12 months of actual work in a paid status, not including overtime, and subsequent anniversary dates shall occur at like intervals.

The provisions of this section shall be subject to other specific provisions of this ordinance concerning change of anniversary dates.

- c. <u>Limit on Unpaid Status</u>. Months in a paid status toward a merit increase need not be continuous, but for a seasonal employee, accrued months shall be lost in the event that there is a period of more than one (1) year when the employee is in an unpaid status.
- d. <u>Salary Increases</u>. Every anniversary salary increase, unless otherwise dictated within a recognized employee organization's Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) shall be to the rate of four percent (4%) higher, except when there is less than four percent (4%) remaining, it shall be to the maximum of the salary grade. Such salary increases shall be given unless there is an affirmative decision of the agency/department head to deny the increase.
- e. <u>Denial of Merit Increase</u>. The agency/department head may disallow a merit increase only after the performance evaluation is reviewed and approved by the Human Resource Director or a designee. If the increase is not granted, the agency/department head shall state the reasons on the form, which shall be given to the employee for signature. The agency/department head shall reconsider the merit increase at least quarterly, and may allow it effective on the first day of any pay period after the date it could have been granted. The responsibility for submitting a written allowance of increase, after its denial, shall be with the agency/department head. The anniversary date shall be postponed until an increase is allowed.

d) TEMPORARY EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS

- 1. <u>Compensation</u>. Temporary employees shall be compensated at the minimum pay rate of the salary plan and grade for their job class, unless an advanced increase is authorized at the time of appointment. Temporary employees do not receive merit increases within the salary grade based on hours of service.
- 2. <u>Function of Temporary Employees</u>
 - a. Temporary employees will normally be utilized to perform irregular, project, or overflow work that cannot be performed by regular employees within the agency/department without additional cost, including overtime costs.
 - b. Temporary employment shall not be used in lieu of the probationary period in a regular or seasonal position or as a trial period of

employment, but this provision shall not render a temporary employee ineligible for appointment to a regular or seasonal position.

- c. Agreements entered into between the County and a federal or state funding authority may contain provisions which will prevail over the rules of this section affecting temporary County employees.
- 3. Length of Employment. No temporary employee shall be permitted to work in the same capacity in which he/she performs substantially continuous service for more than one thousand (1000) working hours (approximately six (6) months of full time service) during any one fiscal year. In the event that a agency/department head has unusual circumstances to warrant employment of a temporary employee for a longer period, the agency/department head may request approval on the Board of Supervisors' agenda, prior to the employee working more than one thousand (1000) hours in the fiscal year. Any request to extend the service shall set forth the justification, the hire date of the temporary employee, and the number of hours requested in the extension. Any additional extension shall require further Board of Supervisors' approval annually, prior to the employee working one thousand (1000) hours in that fiscal year.⁴

e) UNREPRESENTED PER DIEM EMPLOYEE PROVISIONS

- 1. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this ordinance, except as otherwise provided herein, only the provisions set forth in this section shall be applicable to persons employed as unrepresented Per Diem employees.
- 2. Definitions
 - a. "Per Diem Employee" shall mean anyone who occupies a position within a classification established in the Class and Salary Listing as a Per Diem class and that is not represented by a collective bargaining unit. All Per Diem employees shall serve at the pleasure of the agency/department head.
 - b. "Base Rate of Pay" shall mean the hourly rate of compensation as set forth in the Class and Salary Listing for a Per Diem classification.
 - c. "Holiday" shall be the 24-hour period which commences at 7:00 a.m. of any day on which County offices are not open for business, in accordance with County Ordinance, other than Saturday or Sunday.
 - d. "Overtime" shall mean any authorized work actually performed in excess of the established FLSA work week.
 - e. "Critical Care Work Areas" shall mean the following units at the hospital: ER, ICU, CCU, Neuro ICU, Peds ICU, Neonatal ICU, OR, Recovery, Dialysis, Labor and Delivery, and Anesthesia.
 - f. "In Charge" shall mean the assignment by the nursing administration office, and acceptance by a licensed employee, to have total nursing management responsibility for a particular inpatient nursing unit, such responsibility to include, but not necessarily be limited to, patient care, nursing personnel, and the general environment of the unit.

⁴ This restriction applies only to County Temporary Employees and not to regular, seasonal, per diem, or TAP employees.

- g. For acute care assignments, "weekend" shall mean the period commencing at 3:00 p.m. Friday and ending at 7:00 a.m. on Monday. For outpatient clinic or non-acute care assignments, "weekend" shall mean the period commencing at 5:00 p.m. Friday and ending at 7:00 a.m. on Monday.
- 3. <u>Conformance to Plan</u>
 - a. No person shall be employed in or appointed to any Per Diem position until the classification plan shall contain a position specification for such position.
 - b. No person shall be employed in or appointed to any Per Diem position unless said person meets the minimum qualifications set forth in the position specifications.
- 4. <u>Positions Allowed</u>
 - a. The basic classification of Per Diem positions is deemed to be established by the Class and Salary Listing and the number of positions needed for each class shall be as determined from time to time by resolution of the Board of Supervisors.
 - b. No person shall be appointed to a Per Diem position until such position has been allocated to the hiring agency/department.
- 5. <u>Salary Procedures</u>
 - a. <u>Basis of Compensation</u>. Per Diem employees may receive compensation at the hourly rate assigned to the classification in which they are employed.

The Human Resources Director may authorize differential premium pay for Per Diem job classes at rates not more than those established for regular job classes, as needed to maintain efficient business operations. Such premium authorization may be ended by the Human Resources Director as warranted by operations or funding.

- b. <u>Reporting and Calculation</u>. Actual hours of work and overtime work shall be reported for each Per Diem employee on each biweekly attendance report or by such other method as is established by the County Auditor-Controller.
- c. <u>Payment</u>. The County Auditor-Controller shall distribute salary warrants no later than the second Wednesday following the end of a pay period.
- 6. <u>Difficult to Recruit (DTR)</u>. The DTR provisions of Section 10 subsection b) 3 shall apply to unrepresented Per Diem employees as reviewed and approved by the Human Resources Director.
- 7. <u>Overtime</u>. Overtime shall be paid at one and one-half times the FLSA regular hourly rate for all non-exempt employees. FLSA exempt employees who work on a Per Diem basis will be entitled to their base rate of pay for each authorized hour worked in excess of the established FLSA workweek.

- 8. <u>Shift Differential</u>. Shift differentials do not apply to vacation, sick leave, holiday pay, call or standby duty. The hourly rate for each shift differential is payable in tenths of an hour. Employees who work day shift between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m. shall not be entitled to a shift differential.
 - a. <u>Classes not eligible for shift differentials</u>. Employees in the classification(s) listed below shall not be paid shift differential:

Pharmacist – C – PD

b. <u>Evening Shift - General.</u> Per Diem employees whose classes are specifically mentioned below, who perform work between the hours of 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m., shall be paid an evening differential as set out below for the time actually worked between 6:00 p.m. and 11:00 p.m.

Classifications:

Rate:

Electrocardiograph Technician - PD ♦	25¢ per hour
	♦ For employees in this Per Diem classification working at the Riverside University Health System – Medical Center.
 Nursing Assistant - PD 	35¢ per hour
Pharmacy Technician II - PD	60¢ per hour
House Supervisor - PD	Classification(s) authorized by the County Executive Officer to receive the same premium as employees in the equivalent regular classifications.

c. <u>Night Shift - General.</u> Per Diem employees whose classes are specifically mentioned below and who perform work between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., shall be paid a night differential as set out below for the time actually worked between 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m.

Classifications:	Rate:
Electrocardiograph Technician - PD	50¢ per hour
	♦ For employees in this Per Diem classification working at the Riverside University Health System – Medical Center.
 Nursing Assistant - PD 	75¢ per hour
Pharmacy Technician II - PD	\$1.20 per hour
House Supervisor - PD	Classification(s) authorized by the County Executive Officer to receive the same premium as employees in the equivalent regular classifications.

9. Special Medical Care Assignments:

- Any Psychiatrist-Entry Level-Per Diem (Job Code 73835), Psychiatrist I-Per Diem (Job Code 73822), Psychiatrist II-Per Diem (Job Code 73826), and Psychiatrist III- Per Diem (Job Code 73830) shall be entitled to a salary differential of two dollars and forty cents (\$2.40) per hour worked above their regular rate of pay when assigned to the Emergency Treatment Services Facility, Inpatient Treatment Facility or Detention Health Facility, or the Riverside University Health System (RUHS) Medical Center.
- b. Any Psychiatrist-Entry Level-Per Diem (Job Code 73835), Psychiatrist I-Per Diem (Job Code 73822), Psychiatrist II-Per Diem (Job Code 73826), and Psychiatrist III- Per Diem (Job Code 73830) shall be entitled to an hourly differential of forty-two dollars (\$42.00) per hour, in addition to their base rate of pay, for all time worked during an evening shift, on a weekend, or on a holiday in the Emergency Treatment Services Facility, RUHS Medical Center, or Inpatient Treatment Facility. These classifications shall not be eligible to receive holiday pay under any other provision of this Ordinance.
- c. Standby Duty: When placed by the agency/department head specifically on standby duty, any Psychiatrist-Entry Level-Per Diem (Job Code 73835), Psychiatrist I-Per Diem (Job Code 73822), Psychiatrist II-Per Diem (Job Code 73826), and Psychiatrist III- Per Diem (Job Code 73830), otherwise off duty, shall be paid one-eighth (1/8) of the hourly base rate of pay for each hour on standby duty, not to exceed twelve (12) hours for each standby duty assignment. Standby duty pay shall cease when the employee reports to work.
- 10. <u>Holidays</u>. A Per Diem employee who works on a holiday shall be paid at the rate of one and one half times the employee's base rate of pay for the hours actually worked.
- 11. <u>Benefits</u>. No benefits except those expressly provided by statute shall accrue to Per Diem employees.
- 12. <u>Termination</u>. All Per Diem employees shall serve at the pleasure of the agency/ department head and shall not be entitled to any review or hearing procedure upon termination by the agency/department head.

Section 11. VOLUNTEER WORKERS

- a) <u>Definition</u>. "Volunteer Worker" means a person who performs authorized voluntary service to the County of Riverside or a department, institution or agency thereof, without pay, for the benefit of the County and in aid of a recognized County purpose. The term does not include members of volunteer fire departments or companies. For the purposes of this section, the volunteer worker must be currently enrolled pursuant to this ordinance in order to be recognized as a volunteer worker. A volunteer worker is not an employee.
- b) <u>Volunteer Organizations</u>. Any agency/department of the County government may establish one or more organizations of volunteer workers in aid of the purposes of the agency/department or may recognize a private civic organization or delegation thereof as the equivalent. No particular form of organization shall be required; it may be an unincorporated association, a committee or subordinate body of an existing organization, a corporation, or merely a series of individuals sponsored by the agency/department.

c) <u>Enrollment of Volunteer Workers</u>. In each agency/department having an organization of volunteer workers, the agency/department, or organization with agency/departmental approval, shall keep within the agency/department a current and continuing roster upon which volunteer workers are enrolled. This shall contain at least the name, address and telephone number, the date of enrollment and the date of termination of the enrollment; if the worker may be expected to drive an automobile in the performance of the volunteer function (other than between the worker's home and the workplace) then the roster shall include the number and expiration date of the worker's liability insurance. Records as to each volunteer worker shall be retained for three years after such worker has terminated.

The agency/department, or with its approval, the organization, shall, as a part of the roster or separately, keep a continuing record of the number of hours worked by each volunteer worker. If the services of any worker shall be terminated, or if the worker shall cease to perform voluntary service, entry of the date of termination shall promptly be made on the roster. Unless otherwise specified the termination of enrollment shall be without prejudice to later re-enrollment. The services of any volunteer worker may be refused or terminated by the agency/department at will, and shall be terminated when deemed in the best interest of the agency/departmental function or of the voluntary services program to do so.

If there is no volunteer organization within the agency/department, individual volunteer workers may be enrolled by the agency/department in the manner set forth in this subsection.

- d) <u>Motor Vehicle Usage</u>. While unnecessary use of automobiles is to be discouraged, it is recognized that in some volunteer activities motor vehicle usage is indispensable. Privately owned vehicles may be used on express authorization of the agency/department head specifying the purpose. County vehicle use may be authorized only by the County Executive Officer on recommendation of the agency/department head including appropriate justification. No volunteer worker shall be permitted to drive either a private vehicle or a County vehicle for volunteer business until the worker has presented his or her current operator's license and liability insurance policy with minimum limits in the amounts required by the State for bodily injury or death and property damage, and the necessary data therefrom has been placed on the roster.
- e) <u>Reimbursement of Expenses</u>. A volunteer worker who drives a private vehicle duly authorized shall be entitled to reimbursement at a mileage rate currently fixed by the County. Other necessary travel expenses shall be reimbursed at actual cost when authorized by the agency/department. Reimbursement shall be conditional upon claim being promptly made, in no event more than 100 days after the cost was incurred.
- f) <u>County Insurance</u>. Such liability insurance as the County may carry shall be excess insurance over any other valid and collectible insurance, including that provided by the volunteer worker. Volunteer workers are not covered by workers compensation insurance or by County self-insurance for injury or accident arising out of volunteer service.
- g) <u>Reports</u>. Each agency/department, not later than the fifteenth (15th) day of each month, shall make a written report for the preceding month showing the total number of volunteer workers who performed services in that month, the total number of hours of such services, the number of new volunteer workers enrolled during the month and the number whose enrollments were terminated. The report shall be filed with

the County Executive Officer, who may inspect the roster at any time, and shall do so at least quarterly to see that the enrollment of inactive workers has been terminated and that other information on the roster is in current condition.

h) <u>Resolutions</u>. Further rules or regulations in aid of the County's program of voluntary services, or interpretations or extensions of the provisions of this section may be made by resolution of the Board of Supervisors.

Section 12. ORDINANCE PUBLICATION

The Human Resources Director shall maintain a current record of all positions allowed for each agency/department. He/She shall cause to be re-published and circulated to the agency/departments from time to time the contents of this ordinance together with lists of the positions allowed to the respective agency/departments, and shall from time to time supply amendments thereto.

The Human Resources Director may include footnotes in the publication of this ordinance for the purpose of referencing other pertinent sections, attachments, or provisions, or to cite a change in the narrative. The Human Resources Director may re-number, and arrange in a logical order, parts of this ordinance without affecting the narrative content.

Section 13. CONFLICTS AND CONSTITUTIONALITY

The provisions of this ordinance are subject to controlling or limiting provisions of the Constitution and laws of California, and any provisions of this ordinance, which are in conflict there with, shall not be effective to the extent of such conflict.

If any paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance for any reason is held to be unconstitutional or invalid, such shall not affect the remaining portions of this ordinance, and the Board of Supervisors hereby declares it would have passed each paragraph, sentence, clause, and phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one, or more than one sentence, clause, or phrase thereof be declared unconstitutional or invalid.

Attachment 1 - Salary Plan Table

	Hourly	
	Hourly	Hourly
Grade	Minimum	Maximum
	Salary	Salary
101	\$15.5000	\$21.7000
102	\$15.6550	\$21.9170
103	\$15.8116	\$22.1362
104	\$15.9697	\$22.3575
105	\$16.1294	\$22.5811
106	\$16.2907	\$22.8069
107	\$16.4536	\$23.0350
108	\$16.6181	\$23.2653
109	\$16.7843	\$23.4980
110	\$16.9521	\$23.7330
111	\$17.1216	\$23.9703
112	\$17.2929	\$24.2100
113	\$17.4658	\$24.4521
114	\$16.4644	\$24.6966
115	\$16.6291	\$24.9436
116	\$16.7954	\$25.1930
117	\$16.9633	\$25.4450
118	\$17.1329	\$25.6994
119	\$17.3043	\$25.9564
120	\$17.4773	\$26.2160
121	\$17.6521	\$26.4781
122	\$17.8286	\$26.7429
123	\$18.0069	\$27.0103
124	\$18.1870	\$27.2804
125	\$18.3688	\$27.5532
126	\$18.5525	\$27.8288
127	\$18.7380	\$28.1071
128	\$18.9254	\$28.3881
129	\$19.1147	\$28.6720
130	\$19.3058	\$28.9587
131	\$19.4989	\$29.2483
132	\$19.6939	\$29.5408
133	\$19.8908	\$29.8362
134	\$20.0897	\$30.1346
135	\$20.2906	\$30.4359
136	\$20.4935	\$30.7403
137	\$20.6985	\$31.0477
138	\$20.9054	\$31.3582
139	\$21.1145	\$31.6717
140	\$21.3256	\$31.9885
141	\$21.5389	\$32.3083
142	\$21.7543	\$32.6314

Annually		
Grade	Annual Minimum Salary	Annual Maximum Salary
101	\$32,240.00	\$45,136.00
102	\$32,562.40	\$45,587.36
103	\$32,888.02	\$46,043.23
104	\$33,216.90	\$46,503.67
105	\$33,549.07	\$46,968.70
106	\$33,884.56	\$47,438.39
107	\$34,223.41	\$47,912.77
108	\$34,565.64	\$48,391.90
109	\$34,911.30	\$48,875.82
110	\$35,260.41	\$49,364.58
111	\$35,613.02	\$49,858.22
112	\$35,969.15	\$50,356.81
113	\$36,328.84	\$50,860.37
114	\$34,245.99	\$51,368.98
115	\$34,588.45	\$51,882.67
116	\$34,934.33	\$52,401.49
117	\$35,283.67	\$52,925.51
118	\$35,636.51	\$53,454.76
119	\$35,992.87	\$53,989.31 \$54,520,21
120 121	\$36,352.80	\$54,529.21 \$55.074.50
121	\$36,716.33 \$37,083.50	\$55,074.50 \$55,625.24
122	\$37,454.33	\$56,181.50
123	\$37,828.87	\$56,743.31
125	\$38,207.16	\$57,310.74
126	\$38,589.23	\$57,883.85
127	\$38,975.13	\$58,462.69
128	\$39,364.88	\$59,047.32
129	\$39,758.53	\$59,637.79
130	\$40,156.11	\$60,234.17
131	\$40,557.67	\$60,836.51
132	\$40,963.25	\$61,444.87
133	\$41,372.88	\$62,059.32
134	\$41,786.61	\$62,679.92
135	\$42,204.48	\$63,306.71
136	\$42,626.52	\$63,939.78
137	\$43,052.79	\$64,579.18
138	\$43,483.31	\$65,224.97
139	\$43,918.15	\$65,877.22
140	\$44,357.33	\$66,535.99
141	\$44,800.90	\$67,201.35
142	\$45,248.91	\$67,873.37

		Attachmer
143	\$21.9718	\$32.9577
144	\$22.1915	\$33.2873
145	\$22.4135	\$33.6202
146	\$22.6376	\$33.9564
147	\$22.8640	\$34.2960
148	\$23.0926	\$34.6389
149	\$23.3235	\$34.9853
150	\$23.5568	\$35.3352
150	\$23.7923	\$35.6885
151	•	
	\$24.0303	\$36.0454
153	\$24.2706	\$36.4058
154	\$24.5133	\$36.7699
155	\$24.7584	\$37.1376
156	\$25.0060	\$37.5090
157	\$25.2560	\$37.8841
158	\$25.5086	\$38.2629
159	\$25.7637	\$38.6455
160	\$26.0213	\$39.0320
161	\$26.2815	\$39.4223
162	\$26.5444	\$39.8165
163	\$26.8098	\$40.2147
164	\$27.0779	\$40.6169
165	\$27.3487	\$41.0230
165	\$27.6222	\$41.4333
160	\$27.8984	\$41.8476
167		\$42.2661
	\$28.1774	
169	\$28.4591	\$42.6887
170	\$28.7437	\$43.1156
171	\$29.0312	\$43.5468
172	\$29.3215	\$43.9822
173	\$29.6147	\$44.4221
174	\$29.9109	\$44.8663
175	\$30.2100	\$45.3149
176	\$30.5121	\$45.7681
177	\$30.8172	\$46.2258
178	\$31.1254	\$46.6880
179	\$31.4366	\$47.1549
180	\$31.7510	\$47.6265
181	\$32.0685	\$48.1027
182	\$32.3892	\$48.5837
183	\$32.7131	\$49.0696
184	\$33.0402	\$49.5603
185	\$33.3706	\$50.0559
186	\$33.7043	\$50.5564
180	\$34.0413	\$50.5504 \$51.0620
187	\$34.3818	\$51.5726
188	\$34.7256	\$52.0884
103	JJ4.7200	JZ.0004

Attachment 1 - Salary Plan Table

r <u>y Plan Tab</u>	le	
143	\$45,701.40	\$68,552.10
144	\$46,158.41	\$69,237.62
145	\$46,620.00	\$69,930.00
146	\$47,086.20	\$70,629.30
147	\$47,557.06	\$71,335.59
148	\$48,032.63	\$72,048.95
149	\$48,512.96	\$72,769.44
150	\$48,998.09	\$73,497.13
151	\$49,488.07	\$74,232.10
152	\$49,982.95	\$74,974.42
153	\$50,482.78	\$75,724.17
154	\$50,987.61	\$76,481.41
155	\$51,497.48	\$77,246.22
156	\$52,012.46	\$78,018.69
157	\$52,532.58	\$78,798.87
158	\$53,057.91	\$79,586.86
150	\$53,588.49	\$80,382.73
160	\$54,124.37	\$81,186.56
161	\$54,665.61	\$81,998.42
162	\$55,212.27	\$82,818.41
163	\$55,764.39	\$83,646.59
164	\$56,322.04	\$84,483.06
165	\$56,885.26	\$85,327.89
166	\$57,454.11	\$86,181.17
167	\$58,028.65	\$87,042.98
168	\$58,608.94	\$87,913.41
169	\$59,195.03	\$88,792.54
170	\$59,786.98	\$89,680.47
171	\$60,384.85	\$90,577.27
172	\$60,988.70	\$91,483.04
172	\$61,598.58	\$92,397.87
173		
	\$62,214.57	\$93,321.85
175	\$62,836.71	\$94,255.07
176	\$63,465.08	\$95,197.62
177	\$64,099.73	\$96,149.60
178	\$64,740.73	\$97,111.09
179	\$65,388.14	\$98,082.21
180	\$66,042.02	\$99,063.03
181	\$66,702.44	\$100,053.66
182	\$67,369.46	\$101,054.19
183	\$68,043.16	\$102,064.74
184	\$68,723.59	\$103,085.38
185	\$69,410.83	\$104,116.24
185	\$70,104.93	\$105,157.40
187	\$70,805.98	\$106,208.97
188	\$71,514.04	\$107,271.06
189	\$72,229.18	\$108,343.77

		Attachmer
190	\$35.0728	\$52.6092
191	\$35.4236	\$53.1353
192	\$35.7778	\$53.6667
193	\$36.1356	\$54.2033
194	\$36.4969	\$54.7454
195	\$36.8619	\$55.2928
196	\$37.2305	\$55.8458
197	\$37.6028	\$56.4042
198	\$37.9788	\$56.9683
199	\$38.3586	\$57.5379
200	\$38.7422	\$58.1133
201	\$39.1296	\$58.6945
202	\$39.5209	\$59.2814
202	\$39.9161	\$59.8742
203	\$40.3153	\$60.4730
204	\$40.7185	\$61.0777
205	\$40.7185	\$61.6885
200	\$41.1230	\$62.3054
	-	
208	\$41.9523	\$62.9284
209	\$42.3718	\$63.5577
210	\$42.7955	\$64.1933
211	\$43.2235	\$64.8352
212	\$43.6557	\$65.4836
213	\$44.0923	\$66.1384
214	\$44.5332	\$66.7998
215	\$44.9785	\$67.4678
216	\$45.4283	\$68.1424
217	\$45.8826	\$68.8239
218	\$46.3414	\$69.5121
219	\$43.8795	\$70.2072
220	\$44.3183	\$70.9093
221	\$44.7615	\$71.6184
222	\$45.2091	\$72.3346
223	\$45.6612	\$73.0579
224	\$46.1178	\$73.7885
225	\$46.5790	\$74.5264
226	\$47.0448	\$75.2717
227	\$47.5152	\$76.0244
228	\$47.9904	\$76.7846
229	\$48.4703	\$77.5525
230	\$48.9550	\$78.3280
231	\$49.4445	\$79.1113
231	\$49.9390	\$79.9024
232	\$50.4384	\$80.7014
233	\$50.9428	\$81.5084
234	\$51.4522	\$82.3235
235	\$51.4322	\$83.1467
230	\$31.9007	JOJ.1407

Attachment 1 - Salary Plan Table

ry Plan Tab	le	
190	\$72,951.47	\$109,427.21
191	\$73 <i>,</i> 680.99	\$110,521.48
192	\$74,417.80	\$111,626.70
193	\$75,161.98	\$112,742.97
194	\$75,913.60	\$113,870.40
195	\$76,672.73	\$115,009.10
196	\$77,439.46	\$116,159.19
197	\$78,213.86	\$117,320.78
198	\$78,995.99	\$118,493.99
199	\$79 <i>,</i> 785.95	\$119,678.93
200	\$80,583.81	\$120,875.72
201	\$81 <i>,</i> 389.65	\$122,084.48
202	\$82,203.55	\$123,305.32
203	\$83,025.58	\$124,538.37
204	\$83,855.84	\$125,783.76
205	\$84,694.40	\$127,041.60
205	\$85,541.34	\$127,041.00
207	\$86,396.75	\$129,595.13
208	\$87,260.72	\$130,891.08
209	\$88,133.33	\$132,199.99
210	\$89,014.66	\$133,521.99
211	\$89,904.81	\$134,857.21
212	\$90,803.86	\$136,205.79
213	\$91,711.90	\$137,567.84
214	\$92,629.02	\$138,943.52
215	\$93,555.31	\$140,332.96
216	\$94,490.86	\$141,736.29
217	\$95,435.77	\$143,153.65
217	\$96,390.12	\$144,585.19
219	\$91,269.40	\$146,031.04
220	\$92,182.09	\$147,491.35
221	\$93,103.91	\$148,966.26
222	\$94,034.95	\$150,455.93
223	\$94,975.30	\$151,960.48
224	\$95,925.06	\$153,480.09
225	\$96,884.31	\$155,014.89
226	\$97,853.15	\$156,565.04
227	\$98,831.68	\$158,130.69
228	\$99,820.00	\$159,712.00
229	\$100,818.20	\$161,309.12
230	\$100,818.20	\$162,922.21
231	\$102,844.64	\$164,551.43
232	\$103,873.09	\$166,196.94
233	\$104,911.82	\$167,858.91
234	\$105,960.94	\$169,537.50
235	\$107,020.55	\$171,232.88
236	\$108,090.75	\$172,945.21
8	•	

		Attachine
237	\$52.4864	\$83.9782
238	\$53.0112	\$84.8180
239	\$53.5414	\$85.6662
240	\$54.0768	\$86.5228
241	\$54.6175	\$87.3881
242	\$55.1637	\$88.2619
243	\$55.7153	\$89.1446
244	\$56.2725	\$90.0360
245	\$56.8352	\$90.9364
246	\$57.4036	\$91.8457
247	\$57.9776	\$92.7642
248	\$58.5574	\$93.6918
249	\$59.1430	\$94.6287
250	\$59.7344	\$95.5750
251	\$60.3317	\$96.5308
252	\$60.9351	\$97.4961
253	\$61.5444	\$98.4710
254	\$62.1598	\$99.4558
255	\$60.8790	\$100.4503
256	\$61.4878	\$101.4548
257	\$62.1026	\$102.4694
258	\$62.7237	\$103.4941
259	\$63.3509	\$104.5290
260	\$63.9844	\$105.5743
261	\$64.6243	\$106.6300
262	\$65.2705	\$107.6963
263	\$65.9232	\$108.7733
264	\$66.5824	\$109.8610
265	\$67.2483	\$110.9596
266	\$67.9207	\$112.0692
267	\$68.6000	\$113.1899
268	\$69.2860	\$114.3218
269	\$69.9788	\$115.4650
270	\$70.6786	\$116.6197
271	\$71.3854	\$117.7859
272	\$72.0992	\$118.9638
273	\$72.8202	\$120.1534
274	\$73.5484	\$121.3549
275	\$74.2839	\$122.5685
276	\$75.0268	\$123.7942
277	\$75.7770	\$125.0321
278	\$76.5348	\$126.2824
279	\$77.3001	\$127.5452
280	\$78.0731	\$128.8207
281	\$78.8539	\$130.1089
282	\$79.6424	\$131.4100
283	\$80.4388	\$132.7241
		•

\$109,171.66 \$174,674.66 237 238 \$110,263.38 \$176,421.41 239 \$111,366.01 \$178,185.62 240 \$112,479.67 \$179,967.48 241 \$113,604.47 \$181,767.15 242 \$114,740.51 \$183,584.82 \$185,420.67 243 \$115*,*887.92 244 \$117,046.80 \$187,274.88 245 \$118,217.27 \$189,147.63 246 \$119,399.44 \$191,039.10 247 \$120,593.43 \$192,949.49 248 \$121,799.37 \$194,878.99 \$123,017.36 \$196,827.78 249 250 \$124,247.53 \$198,796.06 \$200,784.02 251 \$125,490.01 252 \$126,744.91 \$202,791.86 253 \$128,012.36 \$204,819.77 254 \$129,292.48 \$206,867.97 255 \$126,628.27 \$208,936.65 256 \$127,894.56 \$211,026.02 257 \$129,173.50 \$213,136.28 258 \$130,465.24 \$215,267.64 259 \$131,769.89 \$217,420.32 260 \$133,087.59 \$219,594.52 261 \$134,418.46 \$221,790.47 262 \$135,762.65 \$224,008.37 263 \$137,120.28 \$226,248.45 264 \$138,491.48 \$228,510.94 265 \$139,876.39 \$230,796.05 266 \$141,275.16 \$233,104.01 267 \$142,687.91 \$235,435.05 268 \$144,114.79 \$237,789.40 269 \$145,555.94 \$240,167.29 270 \$147,011.49 \$242,568.97 271 \$148,481.61 \$244,994.66 272 \$149,966.43 \$247,444.60 273 \$151,466.09 \$249,919.05 274 \$252,418.24 \$152,980.75 275 \$154,510.56 \$254,942.42 276 \$156,055.66 \$257,491.85 277 \$157,616.22 \$260,066.76 278 \$159,192.38 \$262,667.43 279 \$160,784.31 \$265,294.11 280 \$162,392.15 \$267,947.05 \$270,626.52 281 \$164,016.07 282 \$273,332.78 \$165,656.23 283 \$167,312.79 \$276,066.11

Attachment	1	- Salary	Plan	Table
1 muchine in	1	Dului y	I Iuli	1 uoro

	-	Attachmen
284	\$81.2432	\$134.0513
285	\$79.6423	\$135.3918
286	\$80.4387	\$136.7458
287	\$81.2431	\$138.1132
288	\$82.0555	\$139.4944
289	\$82.8761	\$140.8893
290	\$83.7048	\$142.2982
291	\$84.5419	\$143.7212
-		
292	\$85.3873	\$145.1584
293	\$86.2412	\$146.6100
294	\$87.1036	\$148.0761
295	\$87.9746	\$149.5568
296	\$88.8544	\$151.0524
297	\$89.7429	\$152.5629
298	\$90.6403	\$154.0886
299	\$91.5467	\$155.6294
300	\$92.4622	\$157.1857
301	\$93.3868	\$158.7576
302	\$94.3207	\$160.3452
303	\$95.2639	\$161.9486
304	\$96.2165	\$163.5681
305	\$97.1787	\$165.2038
306	\$98.1505	\$166.8558
307	\$99.1320	\$168.5244
308	\$100.1233	\$170.2096
308	\$100.1233	\$171.9117
310	\$99.2176	\$173.6308
	•	· ·
311	\$100.2098	\$175.3671
312	\$101.2119	\$177.1208
313	\$102.2240	\$178.8920
314	\$103.2463	\$180.6809
315	\$104.2787	\$182.4878
316	\$105.3215	\$184.3126
317	\$106.3747	\$186.1558
318	\$107.4385	\$188.0173
319	\$108.5128	\$189.8975
320	\$106.5536	\$191.7965
321	\$111.8813	\$201.3863
322	\$117.4753	\$211.4556
323	\$123.3491	\$222.0284
324	\$129.5166	\$233.1298
325	\$135.9924	\$244.7863
326	\$142.7920	\$257.0256
327	\$149.9316	\$269.8769
328	\$157.4282	\$283.3707
329	\$165.2996	\$297.5393
330	\$168.8736	\$312.4162
- 550	00.0730	7217.4102

Attachment 1 - Salary Plan Table

<u>'y Plan Tab</u>	IC	
284	\$168,985.92	\$278,826.77
285	\$165,655.91	\$281,615.04
286	\$167,312.46	\$284,431.19
287	\$168,985.59	\$287,275.50
288	\$170,675.45	\$290,148.26
289	\$172,382.20	\$293,049.74
290	\$174,106.02	\$295,980.24
291	\$175,847.08	\$298,940.04
292	\$177,605.55	\$301,929.44
293	\$179,381.61	\$304,948.73
294	\$181,175.42	\$307,998.22
295	\$182,987.18	\$311,078.20
296	\$184,817.05	\$314,188.99
297	\$186,665.22	\$317,330.88
298	\$188,531.87	\$320,504.18
299	\$190,417.19 \$102,221,26	\$323,709.23
300	\$192,321.36	\$326,946.32
301	\$194,244.58	\$330,215.78
302	\$196,187.02	\$333,517.94
303	\$198,148.89	\$336,853.12
304	\$200,130.38	\$340,221.65
305	\$202,131.69	\$343,623.87
306	\$204,153.00	\$347,060.11
307	\$206,194.53	\$350,530.71
308	\$208,256.48	\$354,036.01
309	\$210,339.04	\$357,576.37
310	\$206,372.65	\$361,152.14
311	\$208,436.38	\$364,763.66
312	\$210,520.74	\$368,411.30
313	\$212,625.95	\$372,095.41
314	\$214,752.21	\$375,816.36
315	\$216,899.73	\$379,574.53
316	\$219,068.73	\$383,370.27
317	\$221,259.41	\$387,203.97
318	\$223,472.01	\$391,076.01
319	\$225,706.73	\$394,986.77
320	\$221,631.47	\$398,936.64
321	\$232,713.04	\$418,883.47
322	\$244,348.69	\$439,827.65
323	\$256,566.13	\$461,819.03
324	\$269,394.43	\$484,909.98
325	\$282,864.16	\$509,155.48
326	\$297,007.36	\$534,613.25
327	\$311,857.73	\$561,343.92
328	\$327,450.62	\$589,411.11
329	\$343,823.15	\$618,881.67
330	\$351,257.16	\$649 <i>,</i> 825.75

Section 14. EFFECTIVE DATE

The operative date of this ordinance is July 1, 1957.

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE, STATE OF CALIFORNIA

By: Chair , Chuck Washington

ATTEST: Kimberly A Rector Clerk of the Board

By: <u>Maomy</u> Deput

1	
2	
3	
4	
5	
6	
7	
8	
9	
10	
11	
12	
13	STATE OF CALIFORNIA)) ss
14	COUNTY OF RIVERSIDE)
15	
16	I HEREBY CERTIFY that at a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of said county held on May 07, 2024, the foregoing ordinance consisting of 14 Sections was adopted by
17	the following vote:
18	AYES: Jeffries, Spiegel, Washington, Perez, and Gutierrez
19	NAYS: None
20	ABSENT: None
21	ABOLITI. None
22	DATE: May 07, 2024 KIMBERLY A. RECTOR
23	Clerk of the Board
24	BY: Maomy i
25	SEAL
26	ULAL
27	
28	05/07/2024 3.10